
City of Cody City Council
AGENDA - Revised 

Tuesday, November 5, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. (Pre-Meeting to begin at 6:45 p.m.) 
Meeting Place:  City of Cody Council Chambers – 1338 Rumsey Avenue, Cody, WY 

Meeting Called to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Moment of Silence 
Roll Call 
Mayor’s Recognitions and Announcements 

Recognition- Citizen Academy Participants 

1. Consent Calendar
All items under the consent calendar will be acted upon in one motion unless a 
Councilmember or member of the public requests that an individual item be taken 
up under Conduct of Business.  

a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Minutes from October 15, 2019
b. Authorize the Mayor to enter into and sign a maintenance agreement 

between the City of Cody and Long Building Technology.
c. Declare the Cisco phone system as junk and authorize the disposal of the 

unit.
d. Approve the street closure of Sheridan Avenue between 10th and 15th 

Streets from 4:00 pm to 8:00pm, actual event running 5:00pm – 8:00 pm, 
on Saturday, November 30th, 2019 during the Christmas Stroll & Holiday 
Parade, contingent upon WYDOT approval.

e. Approve the request from Annette Stone, Cody High School Football, 
Park County School District 6 for the street closure of Beck Ave. between 8th 

and 9th during the hours of 3:30 PM to 8 PM on Friday November 8th ..  The 
requested closure is for tailgate parties to show support for the football team 
during the play offs.

f. Authorize the Mayor to sign the agreements between the City of Cody and 
Rocky Mountain Recovery Systems for debt collection services.

g. Approve the Agreement for Cost Sharing for Traffic Control Signs and 
Devises between Cody Regional Health and the City of Cody. 

2. Public Comments:  The City Council welcomes input from the public.  In order for
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to five (5) minutes per person.  The
Guidelines for the Conduct of City Council Meetings do not allow action to be taken
on public comments.

3. Public Hearing

4. Conduct of Business



 
h. Approve Vouchers and payroll in the amount of $378,224.15. 

 
i. Accept the Auditor’s report and related financial statements for Fiscal Year 2018-

2019 (fiscal year ending June 30, 2019). 
Staff Reference:  Leslie Brumage, Finance Officer 
Spokesperson:    James Steckman, CPA 
 

j. RESOLUTION 2019-11 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF CODY FINAL BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020. 
  Staff Reference:   Leslie Brumage, Finance Officer 
 

k. Consider approving the city Administrator, or his designee, to complete and 
submit a grant application with America Walks. 

Staff Reference:  Rick Manchester, Parks, Rec & Facilities Director 
 

l. Authorize the relinquishment and dedication of easements for an existing water 
line at 2229 Big Horn Ave. 

Staff Reference:   Todd Stowell, City Planner 
 

 
m. Award Bid 2019-11 to Titan Machinery for one Elgin Whirlwind Sweeper in the 

amount of $302,181.00 less a trade in amount of $16,500.00, for a net total of 
$285,681.00. 

Staff Reference:  Phillip Bowman, Public Works Director 
 

5. Tabled Items 
 
6. Matters from Staff Members 
 
7. Matters from Council Members 
 
8. Adjournment 

November 12, 2019  - Tuesday – Special Work Session 5:00 p.m.  
November 19, 2019  - Tuesday – Regular Council Meeting 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Cody 
Council Proceedings 

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 
 
A regular meeting of the Cody City Council was held in the Council Chambers at City Hall in Cody, 
Wyoming on Tuesday, October 15, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor Matt Hall, Council Members, Jerry Fritz, Landon Greer, Diane Ballard, and Heidi 
Rasmussen, City Administrator Barry Cook, City Attorney Scott Kolpitcke, and Administrative 
Services Officer, Cindy Baker. 
 
Absent: Council Members Justin Baily and Glenn Nielson 
 
Mayor Hall called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Proclamation – Extra Mile Day  
 
Council Member Greer made a motion seconded by Council Member Rasmussen to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. Consent calendar included the approval of Minutes: Approval of 
Minutes: Regular Minutes from October 1, 2019 and Work Sessions from September 26, 2019 and 
October 8, 2019; approve Vouchers in the amount of $196,466.86, noting expenses associated with 
one cent special purpose tax.; accept the Transfer of Bomb Response Enclosed Trailer, F6A Bomb 
Robot and listed Support Contents.; approval a request from Park County School District #6 to close 
Beck Ave from 9th to 10th Street from 6 a.m. to noon to accommodate parking for the Veterans Day 
program to be held on Monday, November 11, 2019.  The City will provide the barricades and signage 
with school staff providing the placement and removal and approve the street closure of Sheridan 
Avenue between 10th and 15th Streets from 3:30pm to 6:00pm, actual event running 4:00 – 5:30pm, on 
Thursday, October 31st, 2019 during the Downtown Halloween Festival, contingent upon WYDOT 
approval.   Vote was unanimous. 
 
At 7: 08 p.m. Mayor Hall opened a public hearing to consider if it is in the public’s interest to transfer 
ownership of the retail liquor license to Paniolo Properties LLC located at 1032 12th Street currently held 
by Diehl Enterprises, Inc.  Cindy Baker, Administrative Services Officer provided background 
information.  Everett Diehl provided some history of the Chamberlin Inn and spoke in favor of the transfer 
and the applicants. After calling for comments three times and here none further, Mayor Hall closed the 
public hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Council Member Rasmussen made a motion seconded by Council Member Ballard to approve 
Vouchers and payroll in the amount of $1,940,173.50.  Council Member Greer recused himself from 
the vote.  Vote was unanimous from remaining Council Members.  

 
Council Member Fritz made a motion seconded by Council Member Ballard to approve the transfer of 
ownership of a Retail Liquor License to license Paniolo Properties LLC located at 1032 12th Street 
currently held by Diehl Enterprises, Inc. Noting issuance is contingent upon confirmation/verification of 
the sale of said property.  Vote was unanimous.  
 
Council Member Greer made a motion seconded by Council Member Rasmussen to approve an 
assignment of lease agreement between the City of Cody and Diehl Enterprises, Inc. to Paniolo 
Properties, LLC, contingent upon the sale of the property from Diehl Enterprises, Inc. to Paniolo 
Properties, LLC. Vote was unanimous. 
 



Council Member Fritz made a motion seconded by Council Member Rasmussen to approve Change 
Order #1 for the 2019 ADA Pedestrian Ramp Improvements Project, and authorize the Mayor to sign 
and execute all associated documents.  Vote was unanimous. 

 
Council Member Fritz made a motion seconded by Council Member Ballard to authorize a 35-year 
lease agreement with the Park County Animal Shelter for land located north of Highway 14-16-20 and 
west of Arrow Avenue.  Vote was unanimous. 

 
Council Member Rasmussen made a motion seconded by Council Member Greer to approve the 
Preliminary plat to divide 2308 and 2313 Central Avenue into four lots, with the variances requested, 
subject to conditions. Vote was unanimous. 
 
There being no further action Council President adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
___________________________   _________________________________ 
Matt Hall, Mayor      Cindy Baker, Administrative Services Officer 



HVAC Systems Asset Preservation Support Agreement
 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN 
Request City Council to allow the Mayor to enter into a maintenance agreement with 
Long Building Technology.

SUMMARY OF INFORMATION
This past year we have had an agreement with Long Building Technology to help us 
maintain the Paul Stock Aquatics and Recreation Center, and City Hall buildings.
Long went through the buildings HVAC systems and performed preventative 
maintenance on our systems.  They were able to find minor problems and fix them 
before they became major issues.  By maintaining our existing systems we will get a 
longer life out of our assets.
We would like to continue this maintenance agreement which includes:

 Paul Stock Aquatics and Recreation Center
 Cody Auditorium
 Electric Shop
 Parks Shop, Green House, Glendale Park
 Draw Street Storage Building
 Sanitation and Recycling Center
 Chamber of Commerce Building

This agreement would start on November 10, 2019 and run through November 9, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT
Not to exceed the agreement amount by Long Technologies

ALTERNATIVES
1. Enter into Agreement 
2. Deny the Agreement

ATTACHMENTS
Long Technologies, contract

AGENDA & SUMMARY REPORT TO

Rick Manchester, Parks, Recreation & Public Facilities Director (307) 587-0400
Mike Fink, Public Facilities and Recreation Superintendent (307) 587-0400

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019
DEPARTMENT:  PARKS, RECREATION & PUBLIC 
FACILITIES
PREPARED BY:  MIKE FINK
PRESENTED BY: RICK MANCHESTER









































Signature  Date: 2019.10.11 09:58:32 -06'00' Date   

City of Cody 
Agenda Request Form 

In order to fully prepare the Council for their meetings, individuals wishing to appear 
before the Council are asked to complete the following information prior to placement on 
the agenda. You may be notified by mail, telephone or e-mail of the date you have been 
scheduled to appear. You may also be contacted by City staff prior to the meeting to see 
if your concerns can be addressed without appearing before the Council. 

 
Please provide the following detailed information relating to your concern or request. 
This form (and any relevant attachments) is due no later than seven days prior to a 
Council meeting to allow sufficient time for internal review. Council packets are 
prepared the Wednesday prior to the Tuesday meetings, however Agenda Request Forms 
must be submitted no later than the Monday of the previous week for consideration at the 
Tuesday Meetings. Meetings are held the first and third Tuesday of each month. Please 
complete the following information in full and return to City of Cody PO Box 2200 
Cody, WY 82414 (Fax 307-527-6532) 

 
********* 

 
Name of person to appear before the Council Tina Hoebelheinrich-Cody Chamber 

 
Organization Represented Cody Country Chamber of Commerce 

 
Date you wish to appear before the Council   

 

Mailing Address 836 Sheridan Ave, Cody WY 82414 

 
E-Mail Address exec@codychamber.org 

 
Preferred form of contact: Telephone 307-586-1571 

Telephone 307-586-1571 

 
 
E-Mail exec@codychamber.org 

 

 

Names of all individuals who will speak on this topic Cassandra Wagler/ Theresa Muhic  
 
 

Event Title (if applicable) Holiday Parade  
 
Date(s) of Event (if applicable) 11/30/2019  

 
Full description of topic to be discussed (include all relevant information, attach 
additional sheet if necessary) The purpose of the closure is to allow activities 
to take place in conjunction with the annual Christmas Stroll and parade. Activities will include 
carolers, burn barrels, dancers etc. The closure starts at 4pm and will end at 8pm with the majority of the events from 4-8 pm.  We 
are requesting the closure of Sheridan Avenue from 9th Street to 14th Street as well as the closure of 13th Street-south from 
Sheridan to the alley. 

 

 
 

Which City employee(s) have you spoken to about this issue? Cindy Baker 
 
 

Tina Hoebelheinrich Digitally signed by Tina Hoebelheinrich 

 
 
 

Revised 2/2012 

mailto:exec@codychamber.org
mailto:exec@codychamber.org


M-75A              Wyoming Department of Transportation  

REV 11/2014                 Special Event Application  

 

APPLICATION 

  
Event Name                   Event Date    

Type of Event:               

Event Director or Organizer           Telephone      

Address              Email      

Club Affiliation or Sponsor       Estimated Number of Participants   
 

Course Information:    Total closure  Partial closure     Remain open to traffic (Check appropriate box(s) (Explain in Event Description) 

 

I (we)                              hereby make application for a special permit 

upon the right-of-way of:      

highway     between milepost        and milepost       

highway     between milepost        and milepost       

highway     between milepost        and milepost      

  highway     between milepost        and milepost      

on         between          and       
                                                            Date                   Time                   Time 

I (we) agree to strictly conform to the exhibits attached hereto, subject to all terms, conditions, 
agreements, stipulations and provisions contained in the application and permit, in Chapter XXIII rules and 
regulations of the Wyoming Department of Transportation, and any other applicable regulations, laws or 
ordinances.  
 

EVENT DESCRIPTION (Attach event map):          

               

               

               

               

                

                

                

                
 

Prior to the event, I (we) agree to review the course to determine potential problems that could endanger 
participants and equipment and to notify the participants of them.  If I (we) determine the problems to be 
severe, I (we) agree to cancel the event.  
 



M-75A              Wyoming Department of Transportation  

REV 11/2014                 Special Event Application  

 

APPLICATION 

Permittee must provide a certificate of insurance as evidence of an existing Comprehensive or 
Commercial General Liability Policy, including contractual liability coverage, with limits not less than 
$500,000.00 combined single limit for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence.  

 

             THE PERMITTEE SHALL DEFEND, HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY THE STATE OF WYOMING, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

     AND ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS FROM ALL SUITS OR ACTION WHICH MAY RESULT FROM ANY ACTIVITY 

     BY THE PERMITTEE, ITS OFFICERS, SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES.  

 

                

                                         Name (Please Print)                               Address  

                

                                             Signature                 City, State and Zip  

                

                          Date (Minimum of 60 days prior to event)                                                Telephone 

 

Approval must be obtained from the city, town or county government if the closure restricts the use of any road, 

street or highway of the affected jurisdiction.  

 

            Approved by city or town if applicable     Approved by county if applicable 

 
                

                                 Name/Title (Please Print)                                            Name/Title (Please Print)  

                

                                     Signature/Title                                    Signature/Title  

                
                                                             Date                                                                              Date 

                

                                       Address                                              Address  

                

                                   City, State and Zip                                       City, State and Zip  

                

                                         Telephone                                                            Telephone 

 































AGENDA ITEM NO. _______ 
City of Cody City Council    Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Agreement for Cost Sharing for Traffic Control Signs and Devices  
between Cody Regional Health and the City of Cody 

 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN  
Approve the Agreement for Cost Sharing for Traffic Control Signs and Devices between Cody 
Regional Health and the City of Cody. 
 
SUMMARY OF INFORMATION 
At the June 11, 2019, City Council Work Session, City Staff presented information about a request 
received from Cody Regional Health (CRH) to place Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs) 
at two (2) crosswalk locations on Sheridan Avenue and Paul Stock Drive adjacent to the Cody 
Regional Health Center.  Based on the discussions with Council at the work session, City staff and 
CRH staff have worked together to develop a cost sharing agreement outlining the responsibilities of 
each party for the purchase, installation, and long-term maintenance of the crosswalks and RRFB 
equipment at the locations requested.  This agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney, and 
is attached for City Council consideration.   
 
If the Cost Sharing Agreement is approved, the RRFB equipment will be purchased by CRH and the 
City Streets Crew will plan to install the RRFBs with new signs and posts in the coming months as 
part of the annual sign maintenance and replacement work during the fall and winter seasons.  In 
addition, the City Electric Crew will relocate an existing street light to improve the lighting conditions 
at one of the intersections and improve driver visibility of the proposed RRFB and signs. 
 
It is requested that the City Council approve the Agreement for Cost Sharing for Traffic Control Signs 
and Devices, and authorize the Mayor to sign and execute all associated documents. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The approved FY 2019-20 Budget includes funding of $6,500 for “Signage” within the Sign 
Maintenance program.  With approval of this Agreement, it is anticipated that a maximum of $1,500 
will be utilized from the Sign Maintenance program for the purchase of signs and posts to meet the 
City’s cost share responsibility stated in the Agreement.  In addition, staff time of the City Streets 
Crew will be utilized for the installation of the RRFBs crossing improvements, and staff time of the 
City Electric Crew will be utilized for the relocation of the existing street light.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Agreement for Cost Sharing for Traffic Control Signs and Devices 
 
AGENDA & SUMMARY REPORT TO 

Doug McMillan, Chief Executive Officer, Cody Regional Health, 
dmcmillan@codyregionalhealth.org 

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 

DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS - STREETS 

PREPARED BY:  PHILLIP M. BOWMAN, P.E. 
PRESENTED BY: PHILLIP M. BOWMAN, P.E. 

mailto:dmcmillan@codyregionalhealth.org












CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     1

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Report Criteria:

Invoice Detail.Input date = 10/24/2019,10/29/2019

Invoice.Batch = {NOT LIKE} "1"

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

AIR RESOURCE SPECIALISTS INC (131972)

13.2616.10 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/09/2019 396.77

          Total : 396.77

          Total AIR RESOURCE SPECIALISTS INC (131972): 396.77

ALS GROUP USA CORP (131974)

31-1909423-0 REQUIRED ASBESTOS TESTING 09/24/2019 200.00

          Total : 200.00

          Total ALS GROUP USA CORP (131974): 200.00

ANIXTER INC (130622)

4379139-00 BUSHING ADAPTER 10/03/2019 91.14

4379139-01 ELBOW ADAPTER FOR HY METER 10/08/2019 593.15

4379190-01 Elbow, 1/0 strd 200 amp 10/17/2019 206.46

4379190-01 FREIGHT 10/17/2019 6.62

4379673-00 3 PHASE CIA BRACKET 10/08/2019 156.57

4379673-00 3 PHASE CIA BRACKET 10/08/2019 626.28

          Total : 1,680.22

          Total ANIXTER INC (130622): 1,680.22

BALL, CHAD (131981)

102419 REFUND CASH BOND FOR B ROEMMICH MC-1908-041 10/24/2019 38.26

          Total : 38.26

          Total BALL, CHAD (131981): 38.26

BALLARD, JESSE (131982)

13.1730.14 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/18/2019 300.00

          Total : 300.00

          Total BALLARD, JESSE (131982): 300.00

BASIN MECHANICAL (980)

2455 REPAIR HOT WATER - REC CENTER 10/09/2019 344.04

          Total : 344.04

          Total BASIN MECHANICAL (980): 344.04

BIG HORN ROOFING, INC (1200)

17058 ROOF REPAIRS - REC CENTER 09/16/2019 148.00

          Total : 148.00

          Total BIG HORN ROOFING, INC (1200): 148.00



CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     2

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

CENTURY LINK (10091)

101919 UTILITIES - CENTURY LINK 10/19/2019 39.39

          Total : 39.39

          Total CENTURY LINK (10091): 39.39

CITY OF CODY (2260)

100419 RESTITUTION FROM KELLY WOODWARD MC-1907-033 10/04/2019 55.00

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 2,213.64

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 9,832.07

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 130.11

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 432.96

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 444.77

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 873.31

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 6,630.68

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 11,775.38

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 32.65

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 6,366.01

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 6,299.80

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 46.85

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 1,245.10

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 1,117.40

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 1,117.40

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 502.35

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 1,058.09

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 39.00

103019 UTILITIES - CITY OF CODY 10/31/2019 24.00

          Total : 50,236.57

          Total CITY OF CODY (2260): 50,236.57

CLARK, RONALD W (131046)

TOWN TAXI 101519 TIPSY TAXI VOUCHERS 10/15/2019 182.00

          Total : 182.00

          Total CLARK, RONALD W (131046): 182.00

COPENHAVER KATH KITCHEN KOLPITCKE LLC (3140)

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 3,384.88

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 345.40

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 759.87

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 759.87

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 828.95

93019 Legal Services 10/01/2019 828.95

          Total : 6,907.92

          Total COPENHAVER KATH KITCHEN KOLPITCKE LLC (3140): 6,907.92

CUSTOM DELIVERY SERVICE INC (3343)

266700 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCT TEST SHIPPING 09/30/2019 25.88

          Total : 25.88



CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     3

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

          Total CUSTOM DELIVERY SERVICE INC (3343): 25.88

DAGGETT, KYLE (131980)

16.1670.16 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 10/22/2019 1,309.88

          Total : 1,309.88

          Total DAGGETT, KYLE (131980): 1,309.88

DANA KEPNER COMPANY (3410)

2229661-01 VALVE REBUILD KIT 10/21/2019 882.77

          Total : 882.77

          Total DANA KEPNER COMPANY (3410): 882.77

EDWARDS, LAUREN (131921)

2046 REC CENTER REFUND 10/04/2019 105.00

          Total : 105.00

          Total EDWARDS, LAUREN (131921): 105.00

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES (4140)

3909063 PROJECT 14111-04 WWTF PHASE 2 09/20/2019 5,486.84

3909063 PROJECT 14111-04 WWTF PHASE 2 09/20/2019 1,676.54

3909063 PROJECT 14111-04 WWTF PHASE 2 09/20/2019 457.24

3909063 PROJECT 14111-04 WWTF PHASE 2 09/20/2019 7,620.62

          Total : 15,241.24

          Total ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES (4140): 15,241.24

FARLOW, IRENE (131831)

DBA: CODY CAB LLC 110519 TIPSY TAXI PROGRAM 11/05/2019 938.00

          Total : 938.00

          Total FARLOW, IRENE (131831): 938.00

FORSTER, TYLER (131978)

9.1880.18 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/17/2019 249.78

          Total : 249.78

          Total FORSTER, TYLER (131978): 249.78

FORWARD CODY WYOMING, INC (127450)

100819 REFUND OVERPAYMENT ON PERMIT 10/08/2019 5,124.92

          Total : 5,124.92

          Total FORWARD CODY WYOMING, INC (127450): 5,124.92

FREDERICK, LAUREL (131382)

100419 RESTITUTION FROM DEBRA HODSON MC-1706-037 10/04/2019 50.00



CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     4

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

          Total : 50.00

          Total FREDERICK, LAUREL (131382): 50.00

FREEMAN, ALLISON (131979)

2.1460.26 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/18/2019 194.76

          Total : 194.76

          Total FREEMAN, ALLISON (131979): 194.76

GELCO SUPPLY INC (131525)

ROOTX 57593 ROOT TREATMENT 10/02/2019 3,859.09

          Total : 3,859.09

          Total GELCO SUPPLY INC (131525): 3,859.09

GOOD 2 GO STORES (129982)

100419 RESTITUTION FROM BRANDON DOAK MC-1908-018 10/04/2019 12.89

          Total : 12.89

          Total GOOD 2 GO STORES (129982): 12.89

GOODYEAR, ROBERT W (125939)

GOODYEAR PRINTING 13507 DETENTION REMAND REPORT FORMS 10/02/2019 223.00

          Total : 223.00

          Total GOODYEAR, ROBERT W (125939): 223.00

GRAINGER (4635)

9284607455 REPLACE HOIST PIN FOR LIFT 09/06/2019 6.97

9287344072 OUTRIGGER LOCK PIN FOR HOIST AT REC 09/10/2019 21.20

          Total : 28.17

          Total GRAINGER (4635): 28.17

HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION (129345)

WYOMING STEEL SERVICES LLC 005616 RECYCLING HAULING 10/15/2019 475.00

          Total : 475.00

          Total HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION (129345): 475.00

HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION CO (7730)

PARK COUNTY READY MIX 114322 CONCRETE 09/25/2019 104.00

          Total : 104.00

          Total HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION CO (7730): 104.00

HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION CO. (4780)

133126 PUBLIC WORKS SHOP SEWER REPAIR 09/22/2019 348.06

133228 ASPHALT - 14TH SALSBURY & BLEISTEIN/22ND &  
KERPER

10/13/2019 8,954.89



CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     5

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

          Total : 9,302.95

          Total HARRIS TRUCKING AND CONSTRUCTION CO. (4780): 9,302.95

HARRISON, TIMOTHY BRUCE (131713)

BLUE ASPEN ENTERPRISES LLC 100045 REPAIR FAN IN BOILER ROOM 09/30/2019 375.00

BLUE ASPEN ENTERPRISES LLC 100046 RELIT HOT WATER HEATER AT CHAMBER BUILDING 09/30/2019 37.50

          Total : 412.50

          Total HARRISON, TIMOTHY BRUCE (131713): 412.50

HEBRLEE, TRENT STEVEN (131832)

HOTLINE ELECTRICAL SALES & SERV 28335 Meter F2s Bidirectional 1 ph 09/18/2019 680.00

          Total : 680.00

          Total HEBRLEE, TRENT STEVEN (131832): 680.00

HIGBIE, ED (125133)

102219 REFUND CASH BOND-STEPHANIE LEE MC-1908-013 10/22/2019 100.00

          Total : 100.00

          Total HIGBIE, ED (125133): 100.00

ICMA - MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS (123367)

101619 ICMA MEMBERSHIP DUES 10/16/2019 886.74

          Total : 886.74

          Total ICMA - MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS (123367): 886.74

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC (125191)

SRVCE0102457 BLOWER MOTOR REPLACEMENT 10/22/2019 905.66

          Total : 905.66

          Total LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC (125191): 905.66

MCALMOND, JUSTIN (131976)

4.1220.29 UTILITY DEPOSIT REFUND 10/15/2019 167.29

          Total : 167.29

          Total MCALMOND, JUSTIN (131976): 167.29

NORTHWEST PIPE (7400)

7206352-1 4" FLEXIBLE SADDLE 09/20/2019 84.66

7213125 PVC COUPLING 09/30/2019 44.70

CM7206352 PVC RINGITIE SEWER PIPE 10/15/2019 338.94-

          Total : 209.58-

          Total NORTHWEST PIPE (7400): 209.58-



CITY OF CODY Invoice Register - Payment Approval Report Page:     6

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Input Dates: 10/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 29, 2019  01:23PM

Secondary Name Invoice Description Invoice Date Total Cost

ONE-CALL OF WYOMING (127665)

53466 ONE- CALL FEES - SEPT 2019 10/07/2019 66.57

53466 ONE- CALL FEES - SEPT  2019 10/07/2019 66.56

53466 ONE- CALL FEES - SEPT  2019 10/07/2019 66.56

53466 ONE- CALL FEES - SEPT  2019 10/07/2019 66.56

          Total : 266.25

          Total ONE-CALL OF WYOMING (127665): 266.25

OVERFIELD, WILLIAM (124164)

100819 REFUND OVERPAYMENT ON PERMIT 10/08/2019 2,033.98

          Total : 2,033.98

          Total OVERFIELD, WILLIAM (124164): 2,033.98

OWEN, JEFF (131973)

OR NELSON, KAREN 15.2870.18 REFUND UTILTIY DEPOSIT 10/09/2019 10.44

          Total : 10.44

          Total OWEN, JEFF (131973): 10.44

PACE, KYLEIGH (131975)

14.2130.36 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 10/09/2019 276.80

          Total : 276.80

          Total PACE, KYLEIGH (131975): 276.80

PROFFIT, DOUGLAS J (128647)

PROFFITS ENTERPRISES LLC 9962 MOWING GREYBULL HILL/REC CENTER HILL 09/30/2019 380.00

          Total : 380.00

          Total PROFFIT, DOUGLAS J (128647): 380.00

QUALITY ASPHALT PAVING, INC (125010)

1944 ASPHALT LAYDOWN - CASPER 07/22/2019 750.00

1949 ASPHALT PATCHING 07/26/2019 1,750.00

          Total : 2,500.00

          Total QUALITY ASPHALT PAVING, INC (125010): 2,500.00

RAPID FIRE PROTECTION, INC (129543)

16045 REPAIR BACKFLOW VALVE 09/25/2019 520.00

          Total : 520.00

          Total RAPID FIRE PROTECTION, INC (129543): 520.00

ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER (7570)

101719 UTILITIES - ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER 10/17/2019 28.98

101719 UTILITIES - ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER 10/17/2019 220.24
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          Total : 249.22

          Total ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER (7570): 249.22

ROSTY, CHAD (131971)

3.0280.42 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/08/2019 317.80

          Total : 317.80

          Total ROSTY, CHAD (131971): 317.80

RUSHMORE LOAN MANAGEMENT SERVICE (131864)

17.1716.13 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/17/2019 500.00

          Total : 500.00

          Total RUSHMORE LOAN MANAGEMENT SERVICE (131864): 500.00

SABER PEST CONTROLL LLC (131183)

E119 PEST CONTROL - ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 80.00

P131 PEST CONTROL - PUBLIC WORKS SHOP 10/01/2019 50.00

P131 PEST CONTROL - WATER DEPT 10/01/2019 25.00

P131 PEST CONTROL - WASTEWATER DEPT 10/01/2019 25.00

R130 PEST CONTROL - RECYCLING/SANITATION 10/09/2019 60.00

W130 PEST CONTROL - WASTEWATER DEPT 10/09/2019 50.00

          Total : 290.00

          Total SABER PEST CONTROLL LLC (131183): 290.00

SAGE RECYCLING & WASTE SOLUTIONS LLC (131915)

080819A CARDBOARD RECYCLING HAULING 10/11/2019 873.20

080819B CARDBOARD RECYCLING HAULING 10/11/2019 663.05

          Total : 1,536.25

          Total SAGE RECYCLING & WASTE SOLUTIONS LLC (131915): 1,536.25

SMITH, RANDY (131977)

OR SMITH, KASSIE 17.9956.11 REFUND UTILITY DEPOSIT 10/17/2019 96.13

          Total : 96.13

          Total SMITH, RANDY (131977): 96.13

SYSTEMS GRAPHICS INC (129162)

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14913 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/02/2019 8.77

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14913 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/02/2019 54.22

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14913 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/02/2019 49.64

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14913 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/02/2019 49.31

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14913 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/02/2019 61.27

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14931 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/15/2019 16.15

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14931 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/15/2019 99.85

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14931 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/15/2019 91.42

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14931 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/15/2019 90.80

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14931 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/15/2019 112.84

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14933 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/22/2019 6.81
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ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14933 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/22/2019 42.07

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14933 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/22/2019 38.52

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14933 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/22/2019 38.26

ADVANCED INFO SYSTEMS 14933 OUTSOURCE BILLS 10/22/2019 47.55

          Total : 807.48

          Total SYSTEMS GRAPHICS INC (129162): 807.48

TRAVELERS CL REMITTANCE CENTER (130089)

101419 PROPERTY INSURANCE PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT 10/14/2019 381.00

101419 PROPERTY INSURANCE PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT 10/14/2019 37.00

          Total : 418.00

          Total TRAVELERS CL REMITTANCE CENTER (130089): 418.00

WALLING JR, JAMES (131520)

100419 RESTITUTION FROM JORDAN PHILLIPS MC-1801-010 10/04/2019 75.00

          Total : 75.00

          Total WALLING JR, JAMES (131520): 75.00

WESCO RECEIVABLES CORP (131137)

WESCO DBA:WESCO/KVA/MODERN 376511 Conduit, 4" PVC - 10ft section 09/25/2019 866.40

          Total : 866.40

          Total WESCO RECEIVABLES CORP (131137): 866.40

WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY (10605)

4142085 Xfmr 3ph 225 kVA URD 208/120-2.4/7.2kV 09/30/2019 17,851.12

4142765 SY-Vault, 3 phase transf 10/09/2019 461.11

4142765 SY-Vault, 3 phase transf 10/09/2019 140.89

4142765 SY-Vault, 3 phase transf 10/09/2019 38.43

4142765 SY-Vault, 3 phase transf 10/09/2019 640.42

4142765 BH-Conduit, 4" Pvc - 3' RADIUS 90 10/09/2019 120.60

          Total : 19,252.57

          Total WESTERN UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY (10605): 19,252.57

WYOMING CONFERENCE OF BUILDING OFFICIALS (124777)

101019 WCBO CONFERENCE FEES 10/10/2019 150.00

101019 WCBO CONFERENCE FEES 10/10/2019 150.00

          Total : 300.00

          Total WYOMING CONFERENCE OF BUILDING OFFICIALS (124777): 300.00

WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH (10930)

PREVENTATIVE HEALTH & SAFETY DI I0010835 SAMPLE TESTING 10/01/2019 240.00

          Total : 240.00

          Total WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH (10930): 240.00
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WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (130279)

WYDOT FINANCIAL SERVICES 111916 COST SHARE - IMPROVEMENTS ALONG BIG HORN AVE 09/30/2019 14.50

  Total : 14.50

  Total WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (130279): 14.50

ZIMA CORPORATION (131528)

76296 BAG, SCREENINGS 90 METERS LONB 09/30/2019 666.68

  Total : 666.68

  Total ZIMA CORPORATION (131528): 666.68

  Grand Totals:  133,160.61

Report GL Period Summary

GL Period Amount

10/19 133,160.61

  Grand Totals:  133,160.61

Vendor number hash: 7012151

Vendor number hash - split: 9842356

Total number of invoices: 74

Total number of transactions: 126

Terms Description Invoice Amount Discount Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 133,160.61 .00 133,160.61

  Grand Totals:  133,160.61 .00 133,160.61

Report Criteria:

Invoice Detail.Input date = 10/24/2019,10/29/2019

Invoice.Batch = {NOT LIKE} "1"

Payroll  10/30/19           245,063.54
                                 --------------------
                                      378,224.15 
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

The management of the City of Cody, Wyoming offers the readers of the City’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis for the year ended June 30, 2019.  When read in conjunction with the 
financial statements, this section’s financial highlights, overview and analysis should assist the reader in 
gaining a more complete knowledge of the City’s financial performance. 

Financial Highlights 
• The City of Cody’s net position at the close of the current fiscal year was $89,596,740.  Total net

position is comprised of the following:

(1) Net investment in capital assets of $66,273,794 (74%) include property and
equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to
the purchase or construction of capital assets.

(2) Restricted net position of $6,858,414 (8%) is restricted by constraints imposed from
outside the City such as voters, grantors, laws or regulations, or by policy of the City
Council.

(3) Unrestricted net position of $16,464,532 (19%) represents the portion available to
maintain the City’s continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.

• Total net position increased by $1,750,986 over the prior fiscal year.  The governmental-type net
position increased by $1,105,169 and the business-type net position increased by $645,817.

• Total expenses during the year were $28,877,371 compared to total revenues of 31,430,755.

• The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $8,287,302 or approximately 75% of total
General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

• Net capital assets in the governmental-type funds increased by $582,626 and decreased by
$425,108 in the business-type funds

• Assessed Valuation:  the assessed valuation for the City of Cody for 2019 was $141,298,040, an
increase of $7,231,362 or approximately 6% over 2018.

Overview of the Financial Statements 
The annual report consists of three parts:  1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, 2) the basic 
financial statements, and 3) required supplementary information.  The basic financial statements include 
two kinds of statements that present different views of the City.   

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-
term information about the City’s overall financial status similar to a private-sector company.   

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City 
government, reporting City operations in more detail than what is presented in the government-wide 
statements. 
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

Government-wide 
Statements 

Fund Statements 
Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City government The activities of the City 
that are not proprietary 
such as administration, 

police, streets, and parks & 
recreation 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses 
such as the solid 

waste, water, 
wastewater, and 
electric utilities 

Required financial 
statements 

Statement of Net Position, 
Statement of Activities 

Balance Sheet, Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund 
Balance 

Statement of Net 
Position, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net 

Position, Statement of 
Cash Flows 

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 

financial resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 

resources focus 
Type of asset/liability 

information 
All assets and liabilities, 

both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-

term 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 

become due during the 
year or soon thereafter, no 
capital assets are included 

All assets and 
liabilities both 

financial and capital, 
and short-term and 

long-term 
Type of inflow/outflow 

information 
All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 

paid 

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon 
after the end of the fiscal 
year, expenditures when 
goods or services have 

been received and payment 
is due 

All revenues and 
expenses during the 
year, regardless of 

when cash is received 
or paid 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City of Cody’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  The statement of activities 
presents information reflecting how Cody’s net position has changed during the fiscal year just ended.   

The government-wide financial statements distinguish the functions of Cody that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities).  The governmental activities include general government, administrative services, public 
safety, parks, public facilities, recreation, and public works.  The business-type activities include solid 
waste collection, water, wastewater and electric. 

Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City of Cody, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All 
of the funds of the City of Cody can be divided into three categories:  governmental funds, proprietary 
funds, and fiduciary funds. 
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

• Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported in governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  These funds focus 
on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and
(2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental
funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between
them.

• Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long- and
short-term financial information.

• Fiduciary Funds - The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Cody’s own
programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes to the financial statements are considered an integral part of the basic financial statements since 
they provide additional information needed to gain a full understanding of the data provided in both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes are found on pages of this document. 

Supplemental Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements, which include the accompanying notes, this report also 
presents required supplemental information.  Included is a budgetary comparison for the General Fund, 
the Specific Purpose Tax Fund, and Lodging Tax Fund comparing actual results (using the basis of 
budgeting) with the original budget and the final amended budget.   

Other supplemental information included with the basic financial statements are the combining balance 
sheet and combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance schedules for the 
non-major governmental funds (special revenue and capital projects), and schedule of net changes in 
pension liability and pension contributions. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  The largest portion of Cody’s net position (74%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, machinery & equipment, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those assets 
that is still outstanding.  These assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not 
available for future spending.   

The following summary of net position and changes in net position are presented for the current fiscal 
year, 2018-2019 with comparison totals for the prior fiscal year 2017-2018. 
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets  $      16,917,612 $15,086,081  $      18,007,528 $16,879,693  $  34,925,140 $31,965,774 
Capital assets          30,383,916 29,801,290          35,889,878 36,314,986      66,273,794 66,116,276
Deferred outflows - pensions            2,712,488 1,773,015               510,586 431,215        3,223,074 2,204,230
    Total assets & deferred outflows  $      50,014,016  $      46,660,386  $      54,407,992  $     53,625,894  $104,422,008 $100,286,280 

Long-term debt outstanding               185,455 $158,356  $        1,843,472 $1,838,599  $    2,028,927 $1,996,955 
Other current liabilities               731,512 633,691            1,477,295 1,646,941        2,208,807 2,280,632
Deferred inflows               923,728 1,750,623 51,243 296,142           974,971 2,046,765
Net pension liability            7,572,106 4,621,666            2,040,457 1,494,503        9,612,563 6,116,169
    Total liabilities  $        9,412,801 $7,164,336  $        5,412,467 $5,276,185  $  14,825,268 $12,440,521 

Net position
  Net investment in capital assets  $      30,383,916 $29,801,290  $      35,889,878 $36,314,986  $  66,273,794 $66,116,276 
  Restricted            6,748,003 2,844,653               110,411 0        6,858,414 2,844,653
  Unrestricted            3,469,296 6,850,107          12,995,236 12,034,723      16,464,532 18,884,830
    Total net position  $      40,601,215 $39,496,050  $      48,995,525 $48,349,709  $  89,596,740 $87,845,759 

Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30 each year
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues:
Program revenues
     Charges for services  $        1,718,480 $1,908,357  $      18,868,828 $19,555,985  $  20,587,308 $21,464,342 
     Operating grants and contributions               412,383 294,637 4,378 4,377           416,761 299,014
     Capital grants and contributions               476,198 520,617               337,971 448,637           814,169 969,254
General revenues
     Taxes            1,055,255 1,046,436 0 0        1,055,255 1,046,436
     Intergovernmental            7,178,029 7,817,360 0 0        7,178,029 7,817,360
     Investment earnings               190,561 66,200               172,228 46,616           362,789 112,816
     Other                185,010 54,147 29,036 43,075           214,046 97,222
Total Revenues          11,215,916          11,707,754          19,412,441         20,098,690      30,628,357 31,806,444

Expenses:
     General Government            1,076,545 2,020,670 0 0        1,076,545 2,020,670
     Police Department            3,523,497 3,004,569 0 0        3,523,497 3,004,569
     Parks, Facilities, & Recreation            4,113,608 3,668,249 0 0        4,113,608 3,668,249
     Community Development & Public Works            2,371,723 2,297,497 0 0        2,371,723 2,297,497
     Proprietary 0 0 17,791,998 16,608,109      17,791,998 16,608,109
Total Expenses          11,085,373          10,990,985 17,791,998 16,608,109      28,877,371 27,599,094
Other Sources: 0
     Transfers-internal activity               974,626 2,328,339             (974,626)          (2,328,339) - 0
Total Transfers               974,626 2,328,339             (974,626)          (2,328,339) -   -
Change in net position 1,105,169 3,045,108               645,817 1,162,242        1,750,986 4,207,350

0
Net position - July 1          39,496,046 36,450,942          48,349,708 47,187,467      87,845,754 83,638,409
Net position - June 30  $      40,601,215 $39,496,046 $48,995,525 $48,349,709 $89,596,740 $87,845,759 

Changes in Net Position as of June 30 each year
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

Governmental Activities 
The following charts illustrate governmental revenues by source and the governmental expenses by 
function as reported on the statement of changes in net position. 

Governmental activities during Fiscal Year 2018-19 increased Cody’s net position by $1,105,169. The 
following information describes key changes for the year: 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources increased $3,353,630 
• Current and other assets including cash, investments, accounts receivable (net of allowance)

and due from other governments increased $1,831,531
• Capital assets increased $582,626
• Deferred outflows related to pensions increased $939,473

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources increased $2,248,465 
• Current liabilities including accounts payable, accrued liabilities, customer deposits, due to

other governments and other payables increased $97,821
• Long term debt outstanding including compensated absences increased $27,099
• Deferred inflows related to property taxes, and pensions decreased $826,895
• Net pension liability increased $2,950,440

Revenues decreased $491,838 
• Charges for services decreased $189,877
• Grants and contributions increased $73,327
• Taxes and intergovernmental revenues decreased $630,512
• Investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues increased $255,244

Expenses increased $94,388 
• General Government decreased $944,125
• Police Department increased $518,928
• Parks, Facilities and Recreation increased $445,359
• Community Development and Public Works increased $74,226

Interfund Transfers decreased $1,353,713 

General 
Government

13%

Police 
Department

41%

Parks & City 
Facilities

18%

Community 
Development & 

Public Works
28%

Expenses  by Function - Governmental Activities

Charges for services
15.32%

Operating 
grants/contributions

3.68%

Capital 
grants/contributions

4.25%

Taxes
9.41%

Intergovernmental
64.00%

Investment earnings
1.70%

Other  
1.65%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

Business-type Activities 
The following charts illustrate business-type revenues by source and the business-type expenses by 
function as reported on the statement of changes in net position.   

Business-type activities during Fiscal Year 2017-2018 increased Cody’s net position by $645,817. The 
following information describes key changes for the year: 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources increased $782,098 
• Current and other assets including cash, investments, accounts receivable (net of allowance)

and due from other governments increased $1,127,835
• Capital assets decreased $425,108
• Deferred outflows related to pensions increased $79,371

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources increased $136,282 
• Current liabilities including accounts payable, accrued liabilities, customer deposits, due to

other governments and other payables decreased $169,646
• Long term debt outstanding including compensated absences and the CWSRF loan increased

$4,873
• Deferred inflows related to pensions decreased $244,899
• Net pension liability increased $545,954

Revenues decreased $686,249 
• Charges for services decreased $658,121
• Grants and contributions decreased $110,665
• Investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues increased $82,537

Expenses increased $1,183,889 
• Solid Waste increased $424,642
• Water increased $506,919
• Wastewater increased $187,631
• Electric decreased $35,303

Interfund transfers decreased $1,353,713 

Solid Waste
12%

Water
17%

Wastewater
8%

Electric
63%

Expenses  by Function - Business Type Activities

Charges for 
services
97.35%

Operating 
grants and 

contributions
0.02%

Capital 
grants and 

contributions
1.74%

Investment 
earnings

0.89%

Other  
0.00%

Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

General Fund Budgetary Changes 
The City adopts an annual budget for all funds.  The City Council may adopt budget amendments during 
the year for supplemental appropriations which are generally contingent upon new or additional revenue 
sources or the spending of reserves. 

There was a decrease of revenue in the amount of $624,268 and a decrease in expense appropriations in 
the amount of $558,235 between the original and final amended budget in the General Fund.  This was 
mainly due to grant award changes after the original budget was approved and the carry-over of 
incomplete projects from the prior fiscal year. 

Capital Assets 
The City of Cody’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
June 30th amounted to $66,273,794.  This investment in capital assets includes land, easements, buildings 
& improvements, machinery, equipment, infrastructure associated with the water, wastewater and electric 
distribution systems, as well as streets, trails and park facilities.  The following summary of capital assets 
is presented for the current fiscal year with comparison totals for the prior fiscal year.  Additional 
information pertaining to capital assets activity is available in the notes to the financial statements. 

Major capital asset acquisitions during the current fiscal year include: 
• Construction in Progress $836,335

o ADA ramp construction
o Electric lines
o Water lines
o Beacon Hill water tank
o Wastewater treatment facility
o Splash park

• Furniture & Fixtures $185,616
o Public art

• Improvements other than Buildings $92,568
o Senior Center roof replacement
o Legion ballfield improvements

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
    Land $2,418,607 $2,418,607 $614,332 $614,332 $3,032,939 $3,032,939 
    Intangibles 76,400 76,400 24,900 24,900 101,300 101,300
    Buildings 14,078,495 14,078,495 1,623,979 1,623,979 15,702,474 15,702,474
    Improvements 5,797,359 5,704,790 139,788 139,788 5,937,147 5,844,578
    Furniture & Fixtures 916,179 730,562 -                        - 916,179 730,562
    Machinery & Equipment 5,969,931 5,770,230 4,581,473 4,541,543 10,551,405 10,311,773
    Infrastructure 19,149,841 17,940,331 53,131,475 52,600,787 72,281,316 70,541,118
    Construction in Progress 372,581 467,404 716,687 347,322 1,089,268 814,726
Total Capital Assets $48,779,393 $47,186,819 $60,832,635 $59,892,651 $109,612,027 $107,079,470 
Less Accumulated 
Depreciation

 $  (18,395,476)  $  (17,385,528)  $  (24,942,756)  $  (23,577,665)  $  (43,338,231)  $  (40,963,193)

Total Net Capital Assets $30,383,917 $29,801,290 $35,889,879 $36,314,986 $66,273,796 $66,116,276 

City of Cody’s Capital Assets Net of Depreciation
As of June 30 each year

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

• Infrastructure $1,740,198
o Street overlays
o Electric lines
o ADA ramp construction
o Chip sealing
o Water lines

• Machinery & Equipment $483,437
o Replacement vehicles & equipment
o Radios & communications equipment
o Body & in-car camera equipment
o Fitness equipment
o Office equipment

Outstanding Debt and Long-Term Liabilities 
As of June 30, 2019, the City of Cody’s outstanding debt totaled $1,735,295, an increase of $14,067 over 
fiscal year 2017-2018.  The City’s debt consisted of loans payable for the Wastewater Treatment Facility 
project. 

As of June 30, 2019, the City of Cody’s long-term liabilities totaled $10,391,664, an increase of 
$3,491,443 over fiscal year 2017-2018.  The City’s long-term liabilities consisted of the following: 

The following information describes key changes for the year: 
• Accrued compensated absences increased $15,118
• Customer deposit liability decreased $20,069
• Net pension liability increased $3,496,394

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Loans Payable 0 0 1,735,295 1,721,228 1,735,295 1,721,228
Total Outstanding Debt $0 $0 $1,735,295 $1,721,228 $1,735,295 $1,721,228 

City of Cody -Outstanding Debt
As of June 30 each year

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Accrued Compensated Absence Payable $388,980 $361,881 $200,097 $212,078 $589,077 $573,959 

Customer Deposit Liability 8,949 8,399 181,075 201,694 $190,024 $210,093 

Net Pension Liability 7,572,106 4,621,666 2,040,457 1,494,503 $9,612,563 $6,116,169 
Total Long Term Liabilities $7,970,035 $4,991,946 $2,421,629 $1,908,275 $10,391,664 $6,900,221 

Total

City of Cody -Long Term Liabilities
As of June 30 each year

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

Significant Variations and Currently Known Facts 
The State of Wyoming, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax; therefore it operates 
primarily using taxes and other sources received through the State.  As a result, the City of Cody relies 
heavily on sales and use tax and a limited array of other revenues passed through from the State and well 
as locally generated revenues such as franchise fees, business licenses, and charges for services to provide 
services to the community.  There are also a limited number of recurring and non-recurring federal, state 
and local grants that benefit the City of Cody.  For business-type services such as solid waste collection, 
water distribution, wastewater treatment and electric distribution the users of the services pay a related fee 
or charge associated with the activity. 

The FY 2019-2020 adopted budget represents a continuation of adjusting costs to available resources. The 
use of reserves to balance the General Fund budget is always a concern and the City Council has tasked 
the leadership team with searching for options to minimize the negative impact on the General Fund cash 
reserves.  The challenge is that local governments have few options to raise revenues on their own and 
decreases in service levels substantial enough to preclude the use of reserves to balance the budget would 
have a significant impact on citizens and visitors.  The volatility of a tourist-based economy highlights the 
necessity to focus on long-term, recurring changes that will increase revenues and decrease expenses. 
In 2016, the City sponsored a Wyoming Business Council grant in the amount of $750,000 as a pass 
through to Wyoming Authentic Products to expand their manufacturing facility in Cody.  Construction 
was expected to be complete in September 2019, however this project fell through and the City withdrew 
the grant from Wyoming Business Council.   The City was awarded a $6 million-dollar pass-through 
financing package from Wyoming Business Council for the expansion of the Gunwerks firearms 
production facility.  Over the next five years, the project is expected to create 52 jobs, retain 58 jobs, 
increase payroll over $3 million dollars, and provide the business opportunity for consolidation and 
relocation of corporate officers from Utah.  The financing package is divided between a $3 million-dollar 
grant and a $3 million-dollar loan.  The grant portion was about 80% expended by the end of the 2018-
2019 fiscal year.  While the City sponsored the loan application for Gunwerks, it is a non-recourse loan in 
which the City has no obligation for repayment.  It is a conduit loan where the City is simply the pas-
through entity. 

The City received a second loan from the State Lands and Investments Board through the clean water 
state revolving fund for phase 2 of the wastewater treatment plan upgrade.  The total project cost is 
$6,000,000 and is being funded through the wastewater fund reserves, the specific purpose tax, a state 
mineral royalty grant, and the CWSRF loan.  The new loan has a 20-year repayment schedule at zero 
percent interest and a partial principal forgiveness component. 

The City participated in an electric rate study sponsored by the Wyoming Municipal Power Agency 
during the fiscal year.  The results of this study were implemented as a three-year rate increase for power 
users within City limits beginning October 1, 2019.  The additional annual revenue is estimated to be 
$250,000. 

The City received a grant from the Wyoming Water Development Commission for a water master plan 
study.  The goals of the project are to identify current and future deficiencies within the systems based 
on detailed hydraulic analysis, analyze and identify the amount of annual replacement funding needed 
for the systems, identify a prioritized list of major capital projects to allow for long-term funding and 
planning, and to develop a fair and equitable rate structure for all users of the systems. 

The 1% specific purpose tax that voters passed in November of 2016 had been fully collected by April 
2019.  The sales tax in Park County is currently at 4%.  The City is working with the City of Powell, 
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019

the Town of Meeteetse, and Park County to develop a capital projects list for the 2020 election ballot 
for another specific purpose tax.  The Council is considering several projects for the ballot with an 
estimated total cost of $13.7 million. 

Requests for Information 
The City of Cody’s financial statements are designed to provide its users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
investors and creditors) with a general overview of Cody’s finances and to demonstrate Cody’s 
accountability.  Questions concerning any of the information presented in this report or requests for 
additional information should be sent to: 

Attn:  Finance Officer   City of Cody   PO Box 2200   Cody, WY 82414    finance@cityofcody.com 

12



City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type 
Activities  Total 

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,892,166$        3,462,819$        6,354,985$        
Investments 11,607,677        11,276,729        22,884,406        
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 125,920             2,516,759          2,642,679          
Franchise tax receivable 61,941 - 61,941 
Court fine receivable, net of allowance 28,929 - 28,929 
Property Taxes, net of allowance 713,392             - 713,392 
Due from other governments 989,661             24,444 1,014,105 
Other receivables, net of allowance 5,999 3,629 9,628 
Inventory 246,608             542,073             788,681             
Prepaid expenses 236,370             - 236,370 
Restricted assets:
     Cash and cash equivalents 8,949 181,075             190,024 
Capital assets:
     Land and construction in progress 2,791,186          1,331,020          4,122,206          
     Other capital assets, net of depreciation 27,592,730        34,558,858        62,151,588        

Total Assets 47,301,528        53,897,406        101,198,934      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows related to pensions 2,712,488          510,586             3,223,074          

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 50,014,016        54,407,992        104,422,008      

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 386,566             242,070             628,636             
Related party payables - 851,468 851,468             
Accrued liabilities 131,972             47,729 179,701             
Accrued interest expense - 34,603 34,603 
Compensated Absenses 203,525             91,920 295,445             
Customer deposits 8,949 181,075 190,024             
Other payables - 28,430 28,430 
Due to other governments 500 - 500 
Long-term liabilities:
     Compensated Absences 185,455             108,177             293,632             
     Capital Construction Loans - 1,735,295 1,735,295          
     Net Pension Liability 7,572,106          2,040,457 9,612,563          
Total Liabilities 8,489,073          5,361,224          13,850,297        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows related to property taxes 692,360             - 692,360 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 231,368             51,243 282,611 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 923,728             51,243 974,971             

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,412,801          5,412,467          14,825,268        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 30,383,916        35,889,878        66,273,794        
Restricted for:
     Capital projects 6,652,408          - 6,652,408 
     Debt service - 110,411 110,411 
     Public Safety 95,595 - 95,595 
Unrestricted 3,469,296          12,995,236        16,464,532 
Total Net Position 40,601,215$      48,995,525$      89,596,740$      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

 Expenses 

 Charges for 
Services & 

Fines 

 Operating 
Grants & 

Contributions 
 Capital Grants 
& Contributions 

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type 
Activites  Total 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities:

General Government 1,076,545$        238,635$           7,030$  -$  (830,880)$          -$  (830,880)$          
Police Department 3,523,497          3,369 113,770             533 (3,405,825)         - (3,405,825) 
Parks & City Facilities 1,496,848          113,293             4,487 449,176 (929,892)            - (929,892) 
Community Development & Public Works 2,371,723          278,267             24,960 18,146 (2,050,350)         - (2,050,350) 
Recreation Center 2,616,760          1,084,916          262,136             8,343 (1,261,365)         - (1,261,365) 

Total Governmental Activities 11,085,373$      1,718,480$        412,383$           476,198$            (8,478,312)$       -$  (8,478,312)$       

Busines-Type Activities:
Solid Waste 2,163,920$        2,200,468$        4,378$  5,186$  -$  46,112$             46,112$             
Water 3,107,276          3,251,976          - 300,202 - 444,902 444,902             
Wastewater 1,334,656          1,354,612          - 32,583 - 52,539 52,539 
Electric 11,186,146        12,061,772        - - - 875,626             875,626             

Total Business-Type Activities 17,791,998$      18,868,828$      4,378$  337,971$            -$  1,419,179$        1,419,179$        

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 28,877,371$      20,587,308$      416,761$           814,169$            (8,478,312)$       1,419,179$        (7,059,133)$       

General Revenues:
   Taxes 1,055,255$        -$  1,055,255 
   Intergovernmental 7,178,029          - 7,178,029 
   Investment Income 190,561             172,228             362,789 
   Gain(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 286 - 286 
   Miscellaneous 184,724             29,036 213,760 
Transfers 974,626             (974,626)            - 

Total General Revenues 9,583,481$        (773,362)$          8,810,119          

Change in Net Position 1,105,169          645,817             1,750,986          
Net Position - beginning 39,496,046        48,349,708        87,845,754        
Net Position - ending 40,601,215$      48,995,525$      89,596,740$      

Functions/Programs

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

 General 
 Lodging Tax 

Fund 

 Specific 
Purpose Tax 

Fund 

 Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,424,697$        5,786$  1,296,745$        164,938$           2,892,165$        
Investments 6,483,462          17,739 2,434,762          2,671,714          11,607,677        
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,949 - - - 8,950 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
     Franchise tax receivable 61,941 - - - 61,941 
     Court fine receivable, net of allowance 28,929 - - - 28,929 
     Other receivables, net of allowance 129,758             - - 2,161 131,919             
Property tax, net of allowance 713,392             - - - 713,392             
Due from other governments 788,909             12,049 188,703             - 989,661 
Inventory 246,608             - - - 246,608             
Prepaid expenses 236,370             - - - 236,370             

Total Assets 10,123,015        35,574 3,920,210          2,838,813          16,917,612        

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:  
     Accounts payable 251,877             383 132,836             1,470 386,566             
     Accrued other liabilities 131,972             - - - 131,972             
     Customer deposits 8,949 - - - 8,949 
     Due to other governments 500 - - - 500 

Total Liabilities 393,298             383 132,836             1,470 527,987             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Revenue 67,518 - - - 67,518 
Deferred Property Tax 692,360             - - - 692,360             
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 759,878             - - - 759,878             

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 1,153,176          383 132,836             1,470 1,287,865          

Fund Balances:
     Nonspendable:
          Inventory/prepaid expenses 482,978             - - - 482,978             
     Restricted for:
          Police forfeitures 95,595 - - - 95,595 
          Public Improvements - - 3,787,374          - 3,787,374 
          Convention Center 21,100 - - - 21,100 
          PEG Grant 10,000 - - - 10,000 
          Public Art - - - 3,409 3,409 
     Committed:
     Assigned:
         Capital Assets - - - 2,833,934          2,833,934          
         Open space contributions 72,864 - - - 72,864 
     Unassigned 8,287,302          35,191 - - 8,322,493          

Total Fund Balances 8,969,839          35,191 3,787,374          2,837,343          15,629,747        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources & Fund Balances 10,123,015$      35,574$             3,920,210$        2,838,813$        16,917,612$      

MAJOR FUNDS

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 15,629,747$   
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activites are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
 funds, net of accumulated deprecation of: 18,395,473$    30,383,916  

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and therefore are deferred in the funds:
 Court fine receivable 8,618  
 Severance taxes 58,900  

67,518  

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the funds:

 Accrued compensated absences (388,980)  
(388,980)  

Change in accounting principle related to net pension liability (5,090,986)  

Net Position of Governmental Activities: 40,601,215$   

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position:

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

 General 
 Lodging Tax 

Fund 

 Specific 
Purpose Tax 

Fund 

 Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
REVENUES

Taxes (intergovernmental & service generated) 5,024,397$        124,777$           1,915,933$        -$  7,065,107$        
Royalties 452,022             - - - 452,022             
Other State Funding 716,178             - 716,178             
Grants, Contributions, and Donations 424,032             - - 7,030 431,062             
Fines & Forfeitures 88,781 - - - 88,781 
Charges for Services:
     General Government Fees 172,382             - - - 172,382             
     Police Fees 3,369 - - - 3,369 
     Parks & City Facilities Fees 113,293             - - - 113,293             
     Community Development & Public Works Fees 278,267             - - - 278,267             
     Recreation Center Fees 1,084,916          - - 1,084,916          
Investment Income 105,152             679 42,137 42,593 190,561             
Miscellaneous 184,724             - - - 184,724             

Total Revenues 8,647,513          125,456             1,958,070          49,623 10,780,662        

EXPENDITURES
General Government 454,474$           94,874$             -$  3,621$  552,969             
Police 3,033,139          - - - 3,033,139          
Parks & City Facilities 1,047,445          - - - 1,047,445          
Community Development & Public Works 1,613,201          - - 38 1,613,239          
Recreation Center 2,151,436          - - - 2,151,436          
Capital Outlay 154,269             - 976,062 367,689             1,498,020          
Total Expenditures 8,453,964          94,874 976,062             371,348             9,896,248          

Excess(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 193,549             30,582 982,008             (321,725)            884,414             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers In(Out) 633,874             - - 476,680             1,110,554          
Outside Agency Funding (273,112)            (20,000)              - - (293,112)            
Sale of Governmental Assets 18,975 - - - 18,975 

Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) 379,737             (20,000)              - 476,680 836,417             

Net Change in Fund Balance 573,286             10,582 982,008             154,955             1,720,831          

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 8,396,553          24,609 2,805,366          2,682,388          13,908,916        
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 8,969,839$        35,191$             3,787,374$        2,837,343$        15,629,747$      

MAJOR FUNDS

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Reconcilation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,720,831$        
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays and issue costs as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation and amortization expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:
     Capital asset purchases capitalized 1,367,278          
     Capital assets transferred from business-type funds - 
     Capital asset disposal (18,689)              
     Depreciation expense (1,223,482)         

125,107             

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds:
     Contributed assets 457,519             
     Deferred revenue (22,551)              

434,968             

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
     Pension expense (1,148,638)         
     Accrued compensated absences (27,099)              

(1,175,737)         

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 1,105,169$        

 to the Statement of Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019

 Solid Waste 
Fund 

 Water          
Fund 

 Wastewater 
Fund 

 Electric           
Fund 

 Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
ASSETS:

Current Assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents 536,003$           1,101,624$        878,251$           946,941$           3,462,819$        
    Investments 2,311,393          3,375,352          1,993,786          3,596,198          11,276,729        

     Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 181,075             181,075             
     Accounts receivable, net of allowance 306,845             440,740             180,602             1,592,201          2,520,388          
     Due from other governments - 13,102 11,342 - 24,444 
     Inventory - 61,369 - 480,704 542,073             
Total Current Assets 3,154,241          4,992,187          3,063,981          6,797,119          18,007,528        

Non-current Assets:
     Capital Assets:
        Land and other non-depreciable assets 232,916             253,516             803,986             40,602 1,331,020          
        Other capital assets, net of depreciation 1,202,122          9,600,557          13,168,272        10,587,907        34,558,858        

Total Non-current Assets 1,435,038          9,854,073          13,972,258        10,628,509        35,889,878        

Total Assets 4,589,279$        14,846,260$      17,036,239$      17,425,628$      53,897,406$      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 132,374             113,464             75,642 189,106             510,586             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 132,374             113,464             75,642 189,106             510,586             

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
    Accounts payable 104,548$           201,417$           56,704$             730,869$           1,093,538$        
    Sales tax payable - - - 28,430 28,430 

     Accrued expenses 9,617 7,114 14,146 16,852 47,729 
     Accrued interest payable - - 34,603 - 34,603 
     Customer deposits - - - 181,075             181,075             
     Accrued compensated absences 20,156 26,231 8,509 37,024 91,920 
Total Current Liabilities 134,321             234,762             113,962             994,250             1,477,295          

Non-current Liabilities:
     Net Pension Liability 529,007             453,435             302,290             755,725             2,040,457          
     Compensated Absences 21,063 27,971 9,780 49,363 108,177             
     Loans payable, net - - 1,735,295          - 1,735,295 
Total Non-current Liabilities 550,070             481,406             2,047,365          805,088             3,883,929          

Total Liabilities 684,391             716,168             2,161,327          1,799,338          5,361,224          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 13,285 11,387 7,592 18,979 51,243 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,285 11,387 7,592 18,979 51,243 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,435,038          9,854,073          13,972,258        10,628,509        35,889,878        
Restricted for debt service - - 110,411             - 110,411 
Unrestricted 2,588,939          4,378,096          860,293             5,167,908          12,995,236 
Total Net Position 4,023,977$        14,232,169$      14,942,962$      15,796,417$      48,995,525$      

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

 Solid Waste 
Fund 

 Water          
Fund 

 Wastewater 
Fund 

 Electric           
Fund 

 Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 2,189,924$        3,251,976$        1,354,612$        12,061,772$      18,858,284        
Recycling Revenue 10,544  - - 10,544 
Miscellaneous 854 3,178 

 -   
599 24,405 29,036 

     Total Operating Revenues 2,201,322          3,255,154          1,355,211          12,086,177        18,897,864        

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Personnel 1,018,332          804,103             475,468             1,270,725          3,568,628          
Wholesale Utility Purchases - 1,604,440 - 9,071,521 10,675,961        
Purchases from Suppliers 1,048,377          355,276 323,406             402,596 2,129,655          
Depreciation Expense 97,211 343,457             494,695             441,304             1,376,667          

     Total Operating Expenses 2,163,920          3,107,276          1,293,569          11,186,146        17,750,911        

Operating Income(Loss) 37,402 147,878             61,642 900,031             1,146,953          

NON-OPERATING REVNEUES(EXPENSES)
Investment Income 35,937 49,638 30,526 56,127 172,228             
Interest Expense - - (41,087)              - (41,087) 

     Total Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 35,937 49,638 (10,561)              56,127 131,141             

Net Income(Loss) before contributions & transfers 73,339 197,516             51,081 956,158             1,278,094          

Capital contributions 5,186 300,202             168,511             - 473,899 
Operating contributions 4,378 - - - 4,378 
Transfers in(out) (183,221)            (175,586)            (91,366)              (660,381)            (1,110,554)         

     Changes in Net Position (100,318)            322,132             128,226             295,777             645,808             

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING 4,124,295          13,910,037        14,814,736        15,500,640        48,349,717        
TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING 4,023,977$        14,232,169$      14,942,962$      15,796,417$      48,995,525$      

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

 Solid Waste 
Fund 

 Water          
Fund 

 Wastewater 
Fund 

 Electric           
Fund 

 Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 2,220,337$        3,298,249$        1,362,135$        12,202,114$      19,082,835$      
Payments to suppliers (1,163,120)        (1,946,064)        (332,865)           (9,665,881)        (13,107,930)      
Payments to employees (938,123)           (714,483)           (359,349)           (1,298,467)        (3,310,422)        
Other receipts(payments) 854 3,178 599 24,405 29,036 

Net Cash Provided by(used in) Operating Activities 119,948             640,880             670,520             1,262,171          2,693,519          

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating grants and contributions 4,378 - - - 4,378 
Miscellaneous income(expense) (1) 2 5 (1) 5 
Operating transfers in(out) (183,221)           (175,586)           (91,366)             (660,381)           (1,110,554)        

Net Cash Provided by(used in) Noncapital Financing Activities (178,844)           (175,584)           (91,361)             (660,382)           (1,106,171)        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (16,722) (199,584) (143,901) (238,387) (598,594) 
Purchase of Investments - - - - - 
Contributed capital revenues - 94,042 28,561 - 122,603 
Other Capital Financing Activities - - - (10,884)             (10,884)             
Proceeds from loans and grants - - 93,486 - 93,486 
Principal paid on capital debt - - (70,211)             - (70,211) 
Interest and paid on capital debt - - (41,087)             - (41,087) 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (16,722)             (105,542)           (133,152)           (249,271)           (504,687)           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends 35,937 49,638 30,527 56,127 172,229             

Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Investing Activities 35,937 49,638 30,527 56,127 172,229             

Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (39,681)             409,392             476,534             408,645             1,254,890          

Balances - beginning of year 2,887,077          4,067,584          2,395,503          4,315,569          13,665,733        

Balances - end of year 2,847,396$        4,476,976$        2,872,037$        4,724,214$        14,920,623$      

Reconciliation of Operating Income(Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Operating income(loss) 37,402$             147,878$           61,642$             900,031$           1,146,953$        
Adjustments reconcile operating income to net cash
   provided(used) by operating activities:
         Depreciation 97,211 343,457             494,695             441,304             1,376,667          
Change in assets and liabilities:
         Receivables 19,869 46,273 7,523 140,342             214,007             
         Inventory - 1,882 - (88,834) (86,952)             
         Accounts payable (114,743)           11,770 (9,459) (77,101) (189,533)           
         Sales tax payable - - - (5,210) (5,210) 
         Customer deposit liability - - - (20,619) (20,619)             
         Accrued expenses 897 722 44,965 1,919 48,503 
         Pension Expense 91,325 80,947 83,301 (33,889)             221,684             
         Accrued compensated absences (12,013)             7,951 (12,147)             4,228 (11,981)             

Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Operating Activities 119,948$           640,880$           670,520$           1,262,171$        2,693,519$        

Non-Cash Activities:
Loss on sale of capital assets -$  -$  -$  -$  - 
Contributed capital assets 5,186$  206,160$           130,742$           -$  342,088$           

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019

AGENCY FUND
 Gunwerks 

Manufacturing 
Facility 

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents -$  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 
Due from other governments 317,887 
     Total Assets 317,887 

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 317,887$  
     Total Liabilities 317,887 

NET POSITION
Held in trust - 

     Total Net Position -$  

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019

AGENCY FUND
 Gunwerks 

Manufacturing 
Facility 

ADDITIONS
Grant proceeds 1,167,373$  
     Total Additions 1,167,373 

DEDUCTIONS
Grant Disbursements 1,167,373$  
     Total Deductions 1,167,373 

Net Change -$  

NET POSITION - BEGINNING - 

NET POSITION - ENDING - 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Cody, Wyoming 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

NET POSITION
E. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES
F. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES
G. USE OF ESTIMATES
H. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

NOTE 2.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
A. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR NET POSITION
B. BUDGET REQUIREMENTS
C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS REQUIREMENTS
D. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
E. DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS

NOTE 3.  DETAIL NOTES - TRANSACTION CLASSIFICATION 
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
B. RECEIVABLES
C. RESTRICTED ASSETS
D. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERMENTS
E. CAPTIAL ASSETS
F. LONG-TERM DEBT
G. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES
H. FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION

NOTE 4.  OTHER NOTES 
A. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS
B. RISK MANAGEMENT
C. LEASES
D. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
E. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
F. COMMITMENTS
G. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
H. CONTINGENCIES
I. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS/OTHER
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NOTE 1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The City's accounting and financial reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  GAAP includes all relevant Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.  The accounting and reporting 
framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in the subsequent sections 
of this Note.   

1.A.  FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 61.

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government only.  The primary government of 
the City of Cody consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the City. 

The City of Cody (City) is a municipal corporation located in Park County, Wyoming.  The 
elected Mayor and six-member City Council represent the governing body responsible for the 
activities related to City government within the jurisdiction of the City.  The government 
receives funding from local, state and federal government sources and must comply with the 
accompanying requirements of these funding sources. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable.  
The City is financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of 
the organization’s governing board and (1) the City is able to significantly influence the 
programs or services performed or provided by the organizations; or (2) the City is legally 
entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the City is legally obligated or 
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of or provide financial support to, 
the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organization.  Component units also 
may include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City in that the City approves the 
budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt. 

The City of Cody has no component units presented in the financial statements. 

Related Organizations 
Based on the foregoing criteria, the following related organizations are not included in the 
financial reporting entity: 

Wyoming Municipal Power Agency - provides electrical generation and distribution 
services to its eight-member communities. 

Shoshone Municipal Pipeline - operates a pipeline and water treatment facility to sell 
water to the six communities participating in the joint powers venture. 

Yellowstone Regional Airport Joint Powers Board – created in 1980 to construct, 
maintain, equip, operate and conduct an airport and incidental facilities. 
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Northwest Improvement Projects Joint Powers Board – this board is currently inactive.  
The City of Cody and the City of Powell are members of the Joint Powers Board. 

The Lodging Tax Joint Powers Board – determines the disposition of lodging tax receipts 
to three communities in Park County, Wyoming. 

The City appoints one or two representatives to serve on each of these joint powers boards.  
However, in each case there are at least 5 other board members selected by other entities.  Each 
board hires its own management, sets its own rates and is responsible for its own expenses.  The 
City is not liable for losses of any of the boards and does not provide a significant amount of 
funding for any of the boards. 

1.B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the City as a
whole.  They include all financial activities of the reporting entity except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double reporting of transactions involving internal
activities.  Individual funds are not displayed in these statements.  Instead, the statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.  Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
revenues.  Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between the expenses and program revenues 
directly associated with the different governmental functions and business-type activities to 
arrive at the net revenue or expense of the function or activity prior to the use of taxes and other 
general revenues.  Program revenues include (1) fees, fines and service charges generated by the 
program or activity, (2) operating grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational requirements of the program or activity, and (3) capital grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of the program or activity. 

Fund Financial Statements: 
Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be separate accounting entities.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses.  Separate financial statements are presented for the three major fund 
categories:  governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.  An emphasis of the fund financial 
statements is placed on major governmental and enterprise funds.  The General Fund is always 
reported as a major fund.  Other funds are considered major if they meet the following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund is at least 10% of the corresponding total for all
funds of that category or type, AND
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b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund that are at least 5% of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

c. A fund not meeting the criteria of (a) and (b), however management has elected to
report the fund as a major fund due to its significance to users of the financial
statements.

d. GASB Statement No. 34 permits governments to report as a major fund any other
governmental or enterprise fund that the government’s officials believe is important
to financial statement users.

All remaining governmental and enterprise funds not meeting the above criteria are aggregated 
and reported as non-major funds.  The funds of the financial reporting entity are described 
below: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
General Fund 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all activities 
except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.  This fund is 
always a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 
Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.  The reporting entity 
includes the following special revenue fund: 

Lodging Tax Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures of lodging taxes which are to 
be used to support community functions and activities.  This fund is a major fund by the 
election of management. 

Cody Public Art Fund – this fund was established to account for donations received for use 
in purchasing and leasing artworks for display in public areas. 

Capital Projects Funds 
Capital Projects funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or 
construction of specific capital projects or items.  The reporting entity includes the following 
capital projects funds, of which all are non-major funds: 

Vehicle Replacement Fund - accounts for transfers from other funds within the primary 
government which is for the purchase vehicles and equipment. Transfers are based          
upon each department’s vehicles and assigned replacement schedules to allocate           
appropriate funds to cover future replacements.  Although projects such as construction           
are not being performed, the City considers this a capital project fund. 
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Specific Purpose Tax Fund – accounts for proceeds received from the additional on-cent 
specific purpose sales tax voted in by Park County residents in 2016.  Expenditures from 
this fund are restricted to the specific projects identified on the ballot.  This fund is a major 
fund by the election of management. 

 
Proprietary Funds 
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds.  Enterprise funds are used to 
account for business-like activities for services provided to the general public.  Internal service 
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided and charged to other funds or 
entities within the reporting entity.  Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for 
services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.  
Non-operating revenues of the proprietary funds include such items as investment earnings and 
subsidies.  The reporting entity includes the following proprietary funds, each of which are major 
funds: 

Solid Waste Fund - accounts for the activities of the department responsible for 
maintaining a dependable system for collecting and disposing of solid waste and 
recyclable materials in the City. 

 
Water Fund - accounts for activities of the department responsible for providing a safe, 
potable water supply and an irrigation water supply to the community. 
 
Wastewater Fund - accounts for the activities of the department responsible for 
maintaining a dependable system for collecting and treating the City's wastewater. 
 
Electric Fund - accounts for activities of the department responsible for providing a 
dependable electric supply to the community. 

 
Fiduciary Funds 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Cody’s own 
programs.  The reporting entity includes the following fiduciary funds: 
 

Pass Through Grants Fund – accounts for funds received by the City of Cody that are 
transferred to other entities per the award eligibility terms.  The City is considered the 
prime recipient of the funds and the beneficiary of the funds is considered the 
subrecipient.  The City of Cody currently has one pass through grant for the Gunwerks 
Manufacturing Facility which is administered by Forward Cody Wyoming, Inc. 

 
 

1.C.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe how transactions are recorded within the financial 
statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 
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Measurement Focus 
Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, and the 
proprietary and fiduciary fund statements the "economic resources" measurement focus is 
applied.  The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating 
income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position and cash flows.  All assets 
and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or nonfinancial) associated with their 
activities are reported. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
In the governmental fund financial statements, a "current financial resources" measurement focus 
is applied.  Under this focus, only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on 
their balance sheets.  Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period.  These funds use fund balance as their measure of 
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

Basis of Accounting 
Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, and the 
proprietary fund financial statements the accrual basis of accounting is applied.  Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded 
when the liability is incurred or economic assets are used.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, 
assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
In the governmental fund financial statements, the modified accrual basis of accounting is 
applied.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when 
"measurable and available".  Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate 
the amount.  Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay current liabilities.  The City has defined "available" as collected within 60 days after year 
end.  Sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, lodging taxes, court fines and interest are considered 
susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures, including capital outlay, are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for long-term debt principal and interest, claims and judgments, and 
accrued compensated absences, which are recorded as expenditures to the extent they have 
matured.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financial 
sources. 

1.D.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION/FUND EQUITY

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include all demand deposit accounts.  Investments in open-ended 
mutual fund money market accounts are also considered cash equivalents and are reported at the 
funds current share price. 
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Investments 
Investments consist of U.S. government securities and bonds, sweep account into money market 
mutual funds, and certificates of deposit.  These investments are purchased with the intention of 
holding to maturity and are therefore reported at cost. 

Receivables 
Material receivables in governmental funds and governmental activities include revenue accruals 
such as sales tax, franchise tax, grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they 
are usually both measurable and available.  Non-exchange transactions collectible but not 
available are deferred in accordance with GASB 33.  Interest and investment earnings are 
recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both 
measurable and available at the fund level. 

Proprietary-type funds and business-type activities material receivables consist of all revenues 
earned at year -end and not yet received.  Utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of 
proprietary fund receivables.   

Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the 
periodic aging of accounts receivable. 

Prepaid Items 
Payments made to vendors for service that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018, are 
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid 
amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed.  At 
the fund reporting level, an equal amount of fund balance is reported as non-spendable as this 
amount is not available for general appropriation. 

Inventories 
The City records consumable materials and supplies as an asset when purchased and expended as 
consumed.  Such inventory is valued at average cost. 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 
The accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether 
the assets are used in governmental fund type or proprietary fund type operations and whether 
they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-Wide Statements 
In the government-wide financial statements, property, plant and equipment are accounted for as 
capital assets.  The City's capitalization threshold varies by asset classification and category. The 
range of asset capitalization threshold by asset classification is noted below: 

Classification Threshold 
Land $5,000 
Intangibles $5,000 
Buildings $25,000 
Other Improvements $25,000 
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Machinery & Equipment $  5,000 
Furniture & Fixtures $  5,000 
Infrastructure $5,000 - $25,000 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is 
unavailable, except for donated capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at 
the date of donation.  General infrastructure assets (such as roads, bridges, and traffic systems) 
acquired prior to July 1, 2006, are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated 
replacement costs.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs to these assets that do not add 
materially to the value of the asset or significantly extend the assets' useful lives are not 
capitalized.  Interest costs, net of interest earned on any invested capital debt proceeds, are 
capitalized when incurred by proprietary funds. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an operating expense in proprietary 
fund financial statements and as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net position.  Depreciation is calculated 
over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation.  The range 
of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Asset Type Useful Life 
Buildings 30 – 50 Years 
Other Improvements 10 Years 
Intangibles 1-5 Years 
Machinery & Equipment 5 – 10 Years 
Furniture & Fixtures 5 Years 
Infrastructure 5 – 50 Years 

In the government funds financial statements, capital assets acquired are accounted for as capital 
outlay expenditures. 

Restricted Assets 
Restricted assets include cash and investments of enterprise funds and business-type activities 
that are legally restricted as to their use.  The primary restricted assets are related to customer 
utility deposits. 

Long-Term Debt 
Accounting treatment of long-term debt varies depending upon the source of repayment and the 
measurement focus applied, and whether the debt is reported in the government-wide or fund 
financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental activities, business-type activities, proprietary 
fund and component unit resources are reported as liabilities incurred.  The long-term debt 
consists primarily of accrued compensated absences, liability for claims, notes payable, and 
revenue bonds payable.  This long-term debt is reported net of unamortized premiums, discounts, 
and amounts deferred from refundings, if applicable. 
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Long-term debt of governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
statements.  The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal 
and interest reported as expenditures. 

As of June 30, 2019, the City of Cody is not obligated in any manner for special assessment debt. 

Compensated Absences 
The City's policies regarding vacation and compensatory time permit employees to accumulate 
varying amounts as determined by management.   

The City’s sick leave policy caps sick leave accruals at 720 hours and employees with balances 
in excess of 720 as of the adoption date are allowed to keep all of the hours accrued until such 
time that the employees use the hours below 720.  Eligible employees may be able to convert a 
portion of their accrued sick leave towards the employee’s 457 Deferred Compensation account 
or Health Savings account or a combination of both based on a longevity percentage table upon 
an eligible separation of employment.   

Vacation time off with pay is available to regular full time and regular part time employees. The 
amount of paid vacation time employees receive each year increases with the length of their 
employment.  Full time employees may carry 80 hours of accrued vacation leave and part time 
employees may carry 40 hours of accrued vacation leave into a new calendar year.  Vacation 
time off is paid at the employee’s base rate of pay at the time of vacation 

The estimated liabilities for vested benefits also include salary-related payments such as 
employment taxes.  Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide, 
proprietary and component unit financial statements.  Governmental funds report only the 
matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the financial statements may report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a decrease of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.   

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements may include a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an increase of net 
position that applied to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time.  The City reports deferred outflows and inflows as follows: 

Unavailable Revenues – Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current liabilities 
and are therefore deferred on the governmental funds Balance Sheet.  Property taxes are reported 
on the government-wide Statement of Net Position and are recorded as receivables when levied 
or assessed; however, they are reported as deferred revenue until the “available” criterion has 
been met.  Other unavailable deferred revenue on the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position include prepaid lease revenue.   The City has deferred revenue that qualifies for 
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reporting on the Balance Sheet in this category in the amount of $67,518 which represents court 
fines, and severance taxes. 

Pension Plan Items – in the government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net position, a 
deferred outflow or inflow of resources is reported for the unrecognized items not yet charged to 
pension expense related to the net pension liability.  For purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Wyoming Retirement 
System (WRS) plans and additions to/deductions from WRS’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS.  

At June 30, 2019, the City of Cody reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position a 
deferred outflow in the amount of $3,223,074 and a deferred inflow of $262,611 for its 
proportionate share of the Wyoming Retirement System’s net pension liability.  See Notes 4.A. 
for additional information regarding the pension liability.   

Equity Classifications 
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: 
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources on the government-wide financial statements.  Net 
position is classified in the following categories: 

a. Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of the assets.

b. Restricted net position – Consists of amounts restricted by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments.

c. Unrestricted net position – Consists of the net position that does not meet the
definition of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position”.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is presented in five possible 
categories: 

a. Nonspendable – resources which cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or; (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted – resources with constraints placed on the use of resources are either (a)
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Committed – resources which are subject to limitations the government imposes upon
itself at its highest level of decision making, and that remain binding unless removed
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in the same manner.  The commitment or use of Committed Resources is 
accomplished through an Ordinance or Resolution of the City Council, usually during 
the annual budget process or subsequent budget amendment. 

d. Assigned – resources neither restricted nor committed for which a government has as
stated intended use as established by the governing body.  The assignment or use of
Assigned Resources is accomplished by Council action.

e. Unassigned – resources which cannot be properly classified in one of the other four
categories.  The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund

f. balance amount.

Application of Net Position:  
It is the City of Cody’s policy to first use restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted 
net position, when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
net position is available. 

Application of Fund Balance:  
When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for use, it is the City’s policy 
to use externally restricted fund balances first.  Furthermore, committed fund balances are 
reduced first, followed by assigned fund balances and then unassigned fund balances when 
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund 
balance classifications can be used.  

1.E.  INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES
In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide financial
statement, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial
statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide 
financial statements as follows: 

a. Internal balances – amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund
receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the net residual amounts
due between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as internal
balances.

b. Internal activities – amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial
statements are eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for
the net amount of transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which
are reported as Transfers – Internal Activities.  The effects of interfund services
between funds are not eliminated in the statement of activities.
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c. Primary government and component unit activity and balances – resource flows 
between the primary government and the discretely-presented component units are 
reported as if they were external transactions. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: 
Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental, proprietary fund and fiduciary 
categories is reported as follows in the fund financial statements: 
 

a. Interfund loans – amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables.   

 
b. Interfund services – sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are 

reported as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
 

c. Interfund reimbursements – repayments from funds responsible for certain 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds. 

 
d. Interfund transfers – flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not 

expected are reported as transfers in and out. 
 
1.F.  REVENUES, EXPEDITURES, AND EXPENSES 
Sales Tax 
The City presently levies a four-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City which includes the 
four-cent State tax.  During the period of July 2018 through March 2019 an additional 1% 
specific purpose sales tax was levied in Park County.  The sales tax generated from the four-cent 
tax is collected by the State and remitted to the City the month following receipt by the State.  
The sales tax recorded is allocated to General Fund operations.  The one-cent specific purpose 
sales tax is collected by the State and remitted to Park County monthly.  Park County disburses 
the tax to the other three municipalities in the county based on each entity’s percentage of 
approved tax-funded projects.  Sales tax resulting from sales occurring prior to year end and 
received by the City after year end have been accrued and are included under the caption, Due 
from other governments since they represent taxes on sales occurring during the reporting period. 
 
Property Tax 
The Park County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the County for all 
taxing authorities.  Collections are distributed after the end of each month. 

Property Tax Calendar 
August 10 Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien on the properties 
September 1 First of two equal installment payments is due 
November 10 First installment is delinquent 
March 1 Second installment is due 
May 10 Second installment is delinquent 
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Property taxes are considered “measurable” when levied and recorded as receivables when levied 
or assessed however they are reported as deferred revenue until the “available” criterion has been 
met.  The City of Cody has recorded a receivable and a deferred inflow of resources for levied 
property taxes. 

Grants 
The City participates in various grant activities depending on the applicable projects and/or 
grants available.  Expenditures from certain grants are subject to audit by the grantor, and the 
City is contingently liable to refund amounts received in excess of allowable expenditures.   

Expenditures & Expenses 
In the government-wide statement of activities expenses including depreciation of capital assets 
are reported by function or activity.  In the governmental fund financial statements expenditures 
are reported by class (further reported by function) as current, capital outlay and debt service.  In 
proprietary fund financial statements, expenses are reported by object or activity. 

1.G.  USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

1.H.  RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
New Accounting Standards
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  The primary objective of this statement is
to clarify the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation, establishing that conduit debt is not
a liability for the issuer, establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of any
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and improving required note disclosures.  The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020.  The City of Cody will implement the requirements of this statement as of June 30, 2020.

NOTE 2.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various 
federal, state and local laws and contractual regulations. 

2.A.  DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR NET POSITION
Wyoming Statutes prohibit the creation of a deficit fund balance in any individual fund of the
City.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City had not incurred a fund balance deficit in any
individual fund.

2.B.  BUDGET REQUIREMENTS
The City of Cody’s budget is prepared on a fiscal year basis beginning each July 1st and running
through the following June 30th.  The budget must present a complete financial plan for the City,
setting forth all estimated revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources for the ensuing fiscal
year, together with the corresponding figures for the previous fiscal year.  In estimating the
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anticipated revenues, consideration must be given to any unexpected surpluses and the historical 
percentage of tax collections.  Further, the budget must show a balanced relationship between the 
total proposed expenditures and the total anticipated revenues with the inclusion of beginning 
funds. 

All incorporated first-class cities and towns must comply with the provisions of the Uniform 
Municipal Fiscal Procedures Act (W.S. 16-4-101 through W.S. 16-4-124) in preparing its budget.  
This act requires: 

1. All departments must submit their budget requests to the budget officer by May 1st
of each year. The budget officer must prepare a tentative budget for each fund and
file it with the governing body no later than May 15th of each year.

2. The budget shall be in a format which best serves the needs of the municipality.

3. The budget must contain actual revenues and expenditures for the last completed
fiscal year, estimated total revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year,
and estimated available revenues and expenditures for the ensuing budget year, and
the year-to-year change in estimated revenues.

4. Each budget must contain the estimates developed by the budget officer together
with specific work programs and other supportive data requested by the governing
body, and must be accompanied by a budget message which outlines the proposed
financial policies for the budget year and explains any changes from the previous
year.

5. The proposed budget for the city or town must be reviewed and considered by the
governing body in a regular or special meeting called for this purpose.  After
holding a public hearing, the governing body must adopt the budget (W.S. 16-4-
109).

6. A summary of the budget the governing body proposes to adopt must be entered
into the minutes.

7. The summary of the proposed budget must be published at least one (1) week before
the date of the public hearing in a newspaper having general circulation in that
locality, or if there is none, by posting the notice in three (3) conspicuous places
within the municipality.  Copies of publications of hearings shall be furnished to
the director of the state department of audit.

8. No appropriation in the final budget of any fund can be in excess of the estimated
expendable revenue with the inclusion of beginning funds for the fund for the
budget year (W.S. 16-4-110).
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9. No later than the day after the public hearing, the governing body must make the
necessary appropriations and adopt the budget which, will be in effect for the next
fiscal year barring further amendment.

10. A copy of the adopted budget, certified by the budget officer, must be furnished to
the County Commissioners on or before July 31st (W.S. 39-2-401) for the necessary
property tax levies (W.S. 16-4-111).

2.C.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS REQUIREMENTS (POLICIES)
In accordance with State law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions
must be secured with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par.  Acceptable
collateral includes certain U.S. Government or Government Agency securities, certain State of
Wyoming or political subdivision debt obligations or surety bonds.  Investments of a City are
limited by State law to the following:

a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which
the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the State of Wyoming is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with
acceptable collateral with in-state financial institutions and fully insured certificates
of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.

c. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime banker’s acceptances,
prime commercial paper and repurchase agreements involving securities which are
authorized investments under State Statutes.

d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue
anticipation notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public
trusts whose beneficiary is a county municipality or school district.

e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing
Administrator and debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in
obligations of the National Mortgage Association.

f. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the
investments mentioned in the previous paragraphs a, b, c and d.

2.D.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Related Party Payables
The City of Cody had $851,468 payable to the following related parties at June 30, 2019:
$155,125 in the Water Fund payable to Shoshone Municipal Pipeline and $696,343 payable to
Wyoming Municipal Power Agency.  Further disclosure of related party transaction is reported
in Note 4E.
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Accrued Expenses 
The City of Cody reported $179,701 in accrued expenses as of June 30, 2019.  Accrued expenses 
consist of wages earned by employees through June 30, 2019 which had not yet been paid and 
related payroll liabilities such as FICA.  Due to the dates and report filing of certain payroll 
related expenses for items such as worker’s compensation and retirement these items are also 
included in the accrual.  These items were not paid prior to June 30, 2019 for their respective 
liability.   

2.E.  DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS
General Long-Term Debt
As required by State Statutes, the City may not incur any indebtedness that would require
payment from resources beyond the current fiscal year revenue without first obtaining voter
approval.  For the year ended June 30, 2019 the City incurred no such debt or obligations.

NOTE 3.  DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSIFICATION 
The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic 
financial statements for its various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. 

3.A.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The City’s investment policy is adopted pursuant to the requirements of W.S. 9-4-831(h).  It is
the policy of the City of Cody to invest public funds in a manner which will provide a reasonable
rate of investment return while assuring the maximum holding of principal, meeting the daily
cash flow demand of the City of Cody, and conforming to all federal, state, and local laws and
regulations governing the investment of public funds.  This policy applies to the investment of all
public funds maintained by the City of Cody and except for cash held for certain restricted
purposes the City of Cody consolidates cash balances from all funds to maximize investment
earnings.  Investment income is allocated to the various funds based on their respective
participation and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Deposits with Financial Institutions 
The City of Cody maintains funds on deposit at a local bank branch in non-interest bearing 
checking accounts.  At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s cash and cash 
equivalents was $6,354,985.  The deposits with financial institutions as of the same date totaled 
$6,314,704.  The difference between the carrying amount and the bank balance are the result of 
transactions in transit and petty cash on hand.  The deposits were collateralized as follows: 

 Balance at 
June 30, 2019

 Pledged Collateral  FDIC 
Insurance 

 Total Bank 
Collateral 

 Bank Collateral 
Over(under) 

Requirements  
 $        6,314,704  $        11,200,993   $            250,000  $        11,450,993  $         5,136,289 

Investments 
The City of Cody maintains investments in direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its 
agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government is 
pledged.   It is the City’s policy to purchase investments and hold them to maturity, therefore 
investments are reported at cost rather than fair market value.  State law does not allow 
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governments to invest in corporate bonds, stocks or mutual funds and limits investments in 
commercial paper to short term maturities (not greater than 270 days) and to the top ratings 
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 

As of June 30, 2019, the City of Cody held the following investments: 

Issuing Agency Original Cost Par Value Market Value at 
June 30, 2019 

Money Funds Federated Capital Reserve $25,223 $25,223 $25,223 
U.S. Government Agency Bonds  6,826,841 6,853,000 6,855,913 
Certificates of Deposit 950,000 950,000 959,683 
Sweep Investment Account 15,082,342 15,082,342 15,082,342 

Total $22,884,406 $22,910,565 $22,923,161 

The sweep investment account is backed by securities of the U.S. Government or securities 
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government.  The market value of the securities exceeded the 
principal value by more than 100%.   

The City’s sweep investment account operates by transferring excess funds above the City’s 
target balance in the deposit accounts to an omnibus governmental money market mutual funds 
account at the end of each business day.  Funds are then automatically transferred back to the 
City’s deposit accounts if the account balance falls below the target balance.  

Investment and Deposit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.   

Bank Deposits – The City of Cody maintained 100% pledging of its deposits in financial 
institutions.  FDIC covered $250,000 of the bank balance while the remaining balance 
was secured by the pledging of additional collateral.   At June 30, 2019, the collateral on 
the City of Cody’s deposits exceeded the amount on deposit by $5,136,289. 

Federated Capital Reserve Money Funds - Money funds held as investments are 
collateralized through the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) which 
protects securities up to $500,000.  As of June 30, 2019, the collateral on the City of 
Cody’s money funds deposit exceeded the amount on deposit by $474,770. 

Sweep Investment Account – Governmental deposits are collateralized using the 
underlying securities in the bank’s government strategy money funds which are similar to 
securities used to collateralize bank deposits.  The value of the underlying securities as of 
June 30, 2019 was $79.6 billion. 

Third Party Payment Processors – the City of Cody utilizes third party payment 
processors for the collection of electronic payments from customers via credit card or 
automatic bank account debits.  These transactions are processed through a financial 
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institution and covered under the FDIC insurance.  Funds are transferred to the City’s 
bank accounts weekly and pending transfers do not exceed $250,000.  As of June 30, 
2019, the collateral on the City of Cody’s third-party payment processor’s balance 
exceeded the amount on deposit by $177,910. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that is associated with declines or rises in interest rates which cause 
an investment in a fixed-income holding to increase or decrease in value.  The City’s policy 
provides that to the extent practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows and 
are diversified to minimize the risk of loss resulting from an over-concentration of assets in a 
specific maturity period or single issuer.  The City’s investments are laddered with varying 
maturities based on cash flow needs.  The majority of the City’s investments will mature within 
5 years. 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s 
investment in a single issuer.  The City of Cody invests in U.S. backed securities and bonds 
issued by different government agencies, certificates of deposit issued by different banks, and 
repurchase accounts invested in short-term money market instruments.  The City’s investments 
are diversified as follows: 

Call risk is the risk that is specific to bond issues and refers to the possibility that an instrument 
will be called prior to maturity and usually goes hand in hand with reinvestment risk.  The City 
of Cody’s investments are split as follows: 

Maturity % of Total Market Value 
Daily 65% $15,082,342 
1 to 6 months 5% 1,047,751 
7 to 12 months 8% 1,838,412 
1 to 5 years 20% 4,588,972 
6 to 10 years 2% 365,684 
Grand Total   $22,923,161 

Issuer % of Total Market Value 

Government Agency Debt $11,594,830 
Government Agency Repurchases 4,675,526 
Treasury Repurchases 4,223,055 
Treasury Debt 1,438,415 
Wells Fargo Bank 252,990 
Compass Bank 251,275 
Morgan Stanley Bank 251,170 
JP Morgan Chase Bank 200,670 
Money Funds 25,230 
Grand Total $22,913,161 
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Reinvestment risk is the risk that in a declining- interest rate environment, investments offered do 
not provide the same level of income.  Falling interest rates lead to a decline in cash flow from 
an investment when its principal is reinvested at lower rates.  The City’s sweep investment 
account is subject to reinvestment risk since shares are redeemed and purchased daily.  Changes 
in market interest rates will affect the sweep account balance on a daily basis and have an 
impact, either positive or negative, on the interest earnings.  

Market risk is the risk that the value of a holding will increase or decline as a result of changes in 
market conditions.  The City of Cody has a “buy and hold” policy meaning that bonds are held 
until maturity. 

Credit risk is the risk that an insurer of investments will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by nationally recognized 
statistical rating organizations.  Obligations of the U.S. Government are backed by the full faith 
and credit of the U.S. Government.  The City’s investments in U.S. Government issued securities 
were rated AAA by Moody’s and AA+ by Standard and Poor’s. 

Fair Value of Investments 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs to measure 
the fair value of the asset.  The fair value hierarchy is made up of three levels: 

Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the entity can access at the measurement date.  Examples include US Government and 
agency securities, foreign government debt, listed equities, and money market securities. 

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).  
Examples include corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, bank loans, loan 
commitments, less liquid listed equities, municipal bonds and certain OTC derivatives. 

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  Examples include distressed debt, 
private equity, exotic or non-standard derivatives. 

Type % of Total Par Value 
Callable 17%       $    3,821,250 
Non-Callable 83%       19,091,911 
Grand Total       $ 22,913,161 
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Fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.   

3.B.  RECEIVABLES
As required by GASB #33, there is a court fine receivable recorded on the books in the amount
of $210,301 with an uncollectible allowance recorded of $181,372.  Many of the outstanding
fines fall into the category of over 120 days past due, however, they are typically years past due
and not considered collectible.  Many of these accounts have been sent to collections.

A significant portion of the charges for services receivables are due from residents of Cody, 
Wyoming for utility services.  Other receivables in the governmental funds consist of billings 
through the City’s accounts receivable system for items such as building permits, miscellaneous 
items, licenses, etc.  Proprietary funds accounts receivable consists of usage and tap fees billed to 
customers (solid waste, water, wastewater, and electric).  They are as follows: 

Governmental Enterprise Funds Total 

Accounts Receivable – billed  $          160,522  $     1,078,204  $    1,238,726 
Accounts Receivable – unbilled   5,754 1,590,931 1,596,685     
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts    (40,356)          (152,376) (192,732) 
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance for 
uncollectible accounts  $          125,920  $     2,516,759  $    2,642,679 

3.C.  RESTRICTED ASSETS
The restricted assets as of June 30, 2019 totaled $190,024 and are comprised of customer
deposits and advance grant revenue (see Note 3.F.) and were as follows:

Type of Restricted Assets Governmental Funds Enterprise Funds 

Customer Deposits $8,949 $- 
Meter Deposits - 181,075

Total Restricted Assets $8,949  $181,075 

3.D.  DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS
Due from other governments consists of those revenues due from outside governmental agencies
such as the county, state and federal government.  The following is a schedule of those
receivables and related deferred revenues:

Investments at Fair Value as of June 30, 2019 

Issuer Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
US Government Agency and Treasury Securities $  21,938,248 $       - $ - $  21,938,248
Money Funds Federated Capital Reserve 25,230 25,230 
Certificates of Deposit 959,683 959,683 
Grand Total $  21,963,478 $     959,683 $       - $  22,913,161
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Governmental Business-Type 

Receivable Deferred Receivable 
Sales and Use Tax $604,406 $- $- 
Specific Purpose Sales Tax 188,703 - - 
Severance Tax 58,904 58,904 - 
Cigarette Tax 11,972 - - 
Lodging Tax 12,049 - - 
Lottery Proceeds 11,569 - - 
Motor Vehicle Tax 33,639 - - 
Gasoline and Special Fuels Tax 64,609 - - 
Grants 3,810 - 24,444

Total $989,661  $58,904 $24,444 

The amount shown on this schedule for Governmental deferred revenue ($58,904) differs from 
deferred revenue total shown on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet deferred revenue 
($67,518) due to certain deferred revenue not derived from intergovernmental sources. 

3.E.  CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Balance at       
July 1, 2018  Adjustments  Additions  Disposals 

Balance at       
June 30, 2019

Land 2,418,607$          -$                -$               -$  2,418,607$            
Construction in Progress 467,404               - 372,581          (467,404)           372,581                 
Buildings 14,078,495          - -                 - 14,078,495            
Intangibles 76,400                 - -                 - 76,400 
Improvements 5,704,790            - 92,568            - 5,797,359              
Furniture & Fixtures 730,562               - 185,617          - 916,179                 
Machinery & Equipment 5,770,230            - 431,924          (232,223)           5,969,931              
Infrastructure 17,940,331          - 1,209,510       - 19,149,841            

Total Assets 47,186,819          - 2,292,201       (699,627)           48,779,393            
Accumulated Depreciation (17,385,526)         - (1,223,486)     213,535            (18,395,476)           

Net Capital Assets 29,801,292$        -$                1,068,715$     (486,092)$         30,383,917$          

Balance at       
July 1, 2018  Adjustments  Additions  Disposals 

Balance at       
June 30, 2019

Land 614,332$             -$                -$               -$  614,332$               
Intangibles 24,900                 - -                 - 24,900 
Construction in Progress 347,322               - 463,755          (94,390)             716,687                 
Buildings 1,623,979            - -                 - 1,623,979              
Improvements 139,788               - -                 - 139,788                 
Machinery & Equipment 4,541,543            - 60,599            (20,669)             4,581,473              
Infrastructure 52,600,787          - 530,688          - 53,131,475            

Total Assets 59,892,652          - 1,055,042       (115,059)           60,832,635            
Accumulated Depreciation (23,577,673)         - (1,376,665)     11,583              (24,942,756)           

Net Capital Assets 36,314,978$        -$                (321,623)$      (103,476)$         35,889,879$          

GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

PROPRIETARY CAPITAL ASSETS
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3.F.  LONG-TERM DEBT
The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
governmental funds (Government Activities Long-Term Debt) and the amounts to be repaid
from proprietary funds (Business-Type Activities Debt).

As of June 30, 2019, the City’s long-term debt consisted of the following: 

Accrued Compensated Absences:  Accrued compensated absences reported in the 
governmental activities are comprised of accrued vacation leave, sick leave and 
compensatory time.   

Customer Deposit Liability:  Utility customers without acceptable credit history are 
required to pay a meter deposit to obtain utility services.  Utility deposits are refundable 
after 18 consecutive months of on-time payment history.  Other customer deposits 
include encroachment deposits, landscaping deposits and bid bonds.  Other deposits are 
refundable upon completion of the requirements of each type of deposit, typically within 
12 months. 

Loans Payable:  The City of Cody issued debt in the Wastewater Fund in the amount of 
$1,735,295 for both phases of the wastewater treatment facility upgrade and expansion 
project.  The loan for Phase 2 of the will not become due until after substantial completion 
of the project has been completed. 

The City has assigned and pledged to the Wyoming State Loan and Investment Board all 
revenues generated from the Wastewater user fees and Wastewater enterprise fund 
unrestricted reserves as reimbursement for the annual loan payments which the City will 
make to the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) necessary to meet the amortized 
annual payment of principal and interest. The City of Cody charges a wastewater plant fee 
based on water tap size which is assessed monthly to all users of the City’s sewer system.  
This fee generates approximately $220,000 annually which exceeds the annual debt service 
payment requirement. 

The annual requirements to retire the debt outstanding as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Loan Phase 1 Loan Phase 2 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

2019 $69,646 $40,765 $ - $ - $110,411 
2020 71,361 39,047 84,278 - 194,686
2021 73,123 37,288 - - 110,411
2022 74,926 35,485 - - 110,411
2023 76,774 33,637 - - 110,411
2024-2028 413,217 138,841 - - 552,058
2029-2033 466,737 85,322 - - 552,059
2034-2039 405,233 25,094 - - 430,327

Total $1,651,017 $435,479 $84,278 $ - $2,170,774 
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Net Pension Liability:  Under GASB 68/71 the City of Cody is required to recognize 
pension expense and report deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions for its proportionate share of collective net pension liability 
under cost-sharing employer plans.   

CHANGES IN LONG TERM DEBT 

Balance at       
July 1, 2018 

Additions Deductions Balance at 
June 30, 2019 

Amounts Due 
within a Year 

Governmental Activities: 
     Accrued Compensated Absences $361,881 $27,100 $ - $388,981 $203,525 
     Customer Deposits 8,399 550 - 8,949 8,949 
     Net Pension Liability 4,621,666 2,950,440 - 7,572,106 - 

Total Governmental Activities 4,991,946 2,978,090 - 7,970,036 212,474 

Business-Type Activities: 
     Accrued Compensated Absences $212,078 $ - $11,983 $200,095 $91,920 
     Customer Deposits 201,694 - 20,619 181,075 181,075 
     Loans Payable (CWSRF) 1,721,228 84,278 70,211 1,735,295 110,411 
     Net Pension Liability 1,494,503 545,954 - 2,040,457 - 

Total Business-Type Activities 3,629,503 630,232 102,813 4,156,922 383,406 
Total Long-Term Debt $8,621,449 $3,608,322 $102,813 $12,126,958 $595,880 

3.G.  INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES
The City of Cody utilizes inter-fund transfers for both operating and capital purposes such as
allocations to the Vehicle Replacement Fund and franchise transfers from the Proprietary Funds
to the General Fund.  Inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
General 

Fund 
 Vehicle 

Replacement 
Fund  

Total  Solid 
Waste Fund  

 Water 
Fund  

 Wastewater 
Fund  

 Electric 
Fund  

Total 

Franchise Fees  $947,148  - $947,148  $(110,388)  $(161,636)  $(67,365)  $(607,759) ($947,148) 

Vehicle Replacement  (313,274)  476,680  163,406  (72,833)  (13,950)  (24,001)  (52,622) (163,406) 
Total  $633,874   $476,680  $1,110,554  $(183,221)  $(175,586)  $(91,366)  $(660,381) ($1,110,554) 

The amount shown in this chart differs from the transfers shown on the Statement of Activities 
due to the following capital contributions recorded as other financing sources due to the purchase 
of capital assets by the Vehicle Replacement Fund and Specific Purpose Tax Fund: 

The amount shown on this schedule ($135,928) for capital contributions differs from capital 
contributions total shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net 
Position Proprietary Funds capital contributions ($473,899) due to contributed capital received 
from outside agencies. 

Fund Amount 
Wastewater $130,742 
Solid Waste 5,186 

Total $135,928 
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At fund level, the purchase by the governmental fund is recorded as capital outlay expenditure 
and is a capital contribution in the proprietary fund.  However, for the government-wide financial 
statements this activity is treated as a transfer between funds and activity is eliminated.   

3.H.  FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION
Components of Fund Balances
As of June 30, 2019, fund balances components consisted of the following:

Fund Non-Spendable Restricted Committed Assigned 

General Fund $482,978 $126,695 $ - $ 72,864 
Vehicle Replacement Fund - - - 2,833,934 
Cody Public Art Fund - 3,409 - - 
Specific Purpose Tax Fund - 3,787,374 - - 

Total $482,978 $3,917,478 $ - $2,906,798 

Net Asset Restrictions 
In the governmental activities at the government-wide level there is a restriction in the amount of 
$3,917,478 due to certain assets being restricted to a specific use such as the specific purpose tax 
fund ($3,787,374), police forfeiture funds ($95,595), PEG grant ($10,000), convention center 
project ($21,100), and donations received for the Cody Public Art project ($3,409).    

NOTE 4.  OTHER NOTES 

4.A.  EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS
The City and all full-time and regular part-time employees participate in the Wyoming
Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing multi-employer public employee retirement system.
WRS pays employees a defined benefit depending upon years of service and earnings using an
accrued benefit cost method.

Wyoming Retirement System has two tiers of benefits for City employees: 

Tier 1: For employees who have made a contribution to the Plan for service prior to 
September 1, 2012, benefits are calculated using a multiplier of 2.125 percent for the first 
15 years of service and 2.25 percent for years of service above 15 and the employee’s 
three-year highest average salary.  Employees under this tier are eligible for full 
retirement at age 60 or the Rule of 85 (age plus years of service in WRS equals 85 or 
more). 

Tier 2: For employees who made their first contribution to the Plan for service on or after 
September 1, 2012 or if an employee terminated employment before being vested, or 
took a refund and then were reemployed on or after September 1, 2012, benefits are 
calculated using a multiplier of 2 percent for all years of service and the employee’s five-
year highest average salary.  Employees under this tier are eligible for full retirement 
benefits at age 65 or the Rule of 85.  
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City employees are eligible for a reduced benefit when:  Under Tier 1 the employee reaches age 
50 and are vested; Under Tier 2 the employee reaches age 55 and are vested or Under either Tier 
if the employee completes 25 years of service at any age.  Law enforcement employees are 
eligible for full retirement after reaching age 60 and are vested or at any age with 20 years of 
service.  Early retirement benefits are available with a reduced benefit after reaching age 50 and 
are vested.  All eligible City employees are covered under one of the following two plans: 

Public Employee Pension Plan 
Beginning September 2018, public employees participate at a contribution rate of 17.12%.  By 
State Statute, the employer-allocated portion is 8.62% and the employee-allocated portion 8.50% 
of which the City paid 12.44% and the employees paid 4.68% of the total contribution amount.  
Prior to September 2018 the employer-allocated portion was 8.37% and the employee-allocated 
portion was 8.25% of which the City paid 12.19% and the employees paid 4.43% for a total 
contribution rate of 16.62%. 

Law Enforcement Pension Plan 
Beginning September 2018, law enforcement employees participate at a contribution rate of 
17.2%.  By State Statute, the employer-allocated portion is 8.60% and the employee-allocated 
portion is 8.60% of which the City paid 11.69% and employees paid 5.51% of the total 
contribution amount.   

As of June 30, 2019, the City did not have an outstanding balance payable for legally required 
contributions to the Wyoming Retirement System. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 
The WRS has public employee and law enforcement employee plan assets of $7,430,420,435 
and a total pension liability of $10,717,783,576, creating a net pension liability of 
$3,287,363,141.  The pension net position as a percent of total pension liability is 66%.  The City 
of Cody’s prorated share of the net pension liability is $9,612,563.  Of this amount $7,572,106 is 
attributable to the General Fund and $2,040,457 is attributable to the Enterprise Funds.  The 

Fiscal Year Ending Employee 
Contribution 

Employer 
Contribution 

Total Contribution 

June 30, 2019 $205,180 $548,180 $753,360 
June 30, 2018 $186,462 $512,611 $699,073 
June 30, 2017 $185,985 $511,790 $697,775 
June 30, 2016 $197,551 $548,749 $746,300 

Fiscal Year Ending Employee 
Contribution 

Employer 
Contribution 

Total Contribution 

June 30, 2019 $74,073 $157,153 $231,226 
June 30, 2018 $71,515 $151,726 $223,241 
June 30, 2017 $68,186 $144,663 $212,849 
June 30, 2016 $74,939 $149,844 $224,783 
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City’s net pension liability is based on the ratio of actual contributions paid to WRS by the City 
to the total paid by all participants of the plan.  The City’s prorated share of the net pension 
liability is based on the ratio of actual contributions paid to WRS by the City to the total paid by 
all participants of the plan, which amounts to .292410%.  The measurement date of the unfunded 
pension liability was December 31, 2018.   

At June 30, 2019 the City reported a total liability of $9,612,563 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation at January 1, 2018.  The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating governmental entities.  At December 31, 2018, the 
City’s liability as well as their proportion and increase from its proportion measured at December 
31, 2017 were as follows for each plan in which the City participates: 

At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

The City reported $3,223,074 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from contributions subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year end June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as 
follows: 

Pension 
Liability at 

June 30, 2019 

Proportion at 
December 31, 

2018 

Increase(Decrease) 
from December 

31, 2017 
Public Employee Pension Plan $7,557,246 .2481617% .0110286% 
Law Enforcement Pension Plan 2,055,317 .8490509% .0226203% 

Total $9,612,563 

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow 
Public 

Employees 
Law 

Enforcement 
Public 

Employees 
Law 

Enforcement 

Net difference between 
projected & actual earnings  $1,134,883  $337,795 - $-
Difference between actual and 
expected experience - 2,827  189,789  92,821 
Assumption changes  377,577 877,139  -   -   
Amortizing deferred outflows 
& deferred inflows  1,512,460   1,217,761    189,789   92,821 
Contributions subsequent to 
measurement date  378,601  114,252  -   -   

Total  $1,891,061  $1,332,013  $189,789  $92,821 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
An experience study was conducted covering the five-year period ending December 31, 2017.  
The net pension liability as of December 31, 2018 is based on the results of an actuarial valuation 
as of January 1, 2018 rolled forward to a measurement date of December 31, 2018.  The 
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

2019  $1,179,323  $103,407 
2020  $742,274  $65,085 
2021  $555,336  $48,694 
2022  $746,141  $65,425 

 $3,223,074  $282,611 

Public Employee Pension Plan 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
Inflation 2.25% 
Salary increases 4.75% to 8.75%, including inflation 
Payroll growth rate 2.5% 
Cost of living increase 0.00% 
Investment rate of return 7.00%, net of pension plan investment expense 
Post-retirement mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, fully generational, projected 

with Scale MP-2017 
Males:  No set back with a multiplier of 100% 
Females: No set back with a multiplier of 88% 

Pre-retirement mortality RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table, fully generational, projected with Scale 
MP-2017 
Males:  No set back with a multiplier of 100% 
Females: No set back with a multiplier of 100% 

Law Enforcement Pension Plan 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
Inflation 2.25% 
Salary increases 4.75% to 8.75%, including inflation 
Payroll growth rate 2.5% 
Cost of living increase 0.00% 
Investment rate of return 7.00%, net of pension plan investment expense 
Post-retirement mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, fully generational, projected 

with Scale MP-2017 
Males: No set back with a multiplier of 100% 
Females: No set back with a multiplier of 88% 

Pre-retirement mortality RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table, fully generational, projected with Scale 
MP-2017 
Males: No set back with a multiplier of 100% 
Females: No set back with a multiplier of 100% 
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Asset Allocation 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return are developed for each major 
asset class.  These real rates of return are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  For each major asset class that is included in the 
pension plans target asset allocation as of January 1, 2019, these best estimates are summarized 
in the following table: 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% for the public employee 
plan and 5.92% for the law enforcement plan.  Projected benefit payments are required to be 
discounted to their actuarial present values using a single discount rate that reflects (1) a long-
term expected rate of return and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-
year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date. 

The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as the City’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.00%) or 1% 
higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

Wyoming Retirement System Reports 
Financial reporting information pertaining to the City’s participation in the Wyoming Retirement 
System (WRS) is prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by 
GASB Statement No. 71.  The WRS was established through State Statutes W.S. 9-3-401 
through W.S. 9-3-432.  The WRS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report that includes its financial statements and required supplementary information.  Contact 
the Wyoming Retirement System for additional information or a summary plan description 

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected 
Arithmetic Rate of Return 

Cash 0.00% .30% 
Fixed Income 20.00% 2.00% 
Equity 49.00% 7.40% 
Marketable Alternatives 19.00% 3.50% 
Private Markets 12.50% 7.00% 

Total 100.00% 5.50% 

Primary Government 
Pension Plans 

1% Decrease 
(6.00%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.00%) 

1% Increase 
(8.00%) 

Public Employee Plan $10,480,881 $7,557,246 $5,117,499 
Law Enforcement Plan 3,094,466 2,055,317 1,212,874 

Total $13,575,347 9,612,563 $6,330,373 
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detailing the provisions of the plan, including benefits, actuarial assumptions, discount rates, 
investments held, expected rates of return, discount rate sensitivity and cost of living adjustments 
at 6101Yellowstone Road, Suite 500, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002, or by calling 307-777-7691.  
The information is also available on their website at www.retirement.state.wy.us 

4.B.  RISK MANAGEMENT

Liability 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees’ health and life; and natural 
disasters.  The City manages these various risks of loss through participation in the Wyoming 
Local Government Liability Pool (LGLP). The City pays an annual actuarially determined 
assessment to LGLP for liability coverage.  The coverage provides $250,000 per claimant, but 
not more than $500,000 per occurrence for all claimants.  The deductible per occurrence is 
$5,000.  The contribution to the plan in the current year was $46,270.  Should claims exceed 
LGLP deposits, each participant is liable and will be assessed for its proportionate share whether 
or not it continues to participate in the plan, should LGLP terminate, the City would receive its 
proportionate share of excess funds remaining in the LGLP account.  The City has incurred no 
losses of significance in excess of coverage provided by LGLP in the last three years. 

Health Insurance 
The City also participates in the Wyoming Association of Municipalities Joint Powers Insurance 
Coverage (WAM-JPIC) as a means to acquiring health and life insurance at competitive rates.  
The package is acquired by pooling resources with other governmental entities.  The City pays 
100% of the cost for single coverage and 85% of the cost for dependent coverage with employees 
paying the other 15%.   In addition, the City contributes 50% of the employees’ annual deductible 
into a health savings account (H.S.A.) for each covered employee.  Employees with family 
coverage receive $1,300 per year (contributed at $54.16 per pay period) and employees with 
other than family coverage receive $625 per year (contributed at $26.07 per pay period).  The 
total cost for health insurance and H.S.A contribution for the City in the current fiscal year was 
$1,661,388. 

Property Insurance 
Buildings and equipment are adequately insured under commercial insurance policies.  The City 
has incurred no losses of significance in excess of coverage provided by the commercial carriers 
in the last three years.  Total costs for property insurance for the City in the current fiscal year 
were $63,496. 

Cyber Insurance 
The City maintains cyber insurance to protect against internet-based risks and risks related to 
information technology infrastructure and activities.  The City has incurred no losses.  Total 
costs for cyber insurance for the City in the current fiscal year were $7,780. 

4.C.  LEASES
The City has entered into a lease agreement with the Cody Council on Aging, Inc. for a building 
constructed by the City for use as a senior center.  The annual fair market value under the lease is
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approximately $87,000.  The term of the lease is 30 years beginning January 1, 2002 with 
valuation adjustments to be considered every five years.  The annual lease payment is considered 
an in-kind contribution from the City to the Cody Council on Aging, a 501(c) (3) organization. 

4.D.  COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Accumulated vacation, sick leave and compensatory pay of the City’s employees vest every
other week and is recorded as a liability in the respective City funds.  The General Fund’s
accrued vacation pay and sick leave is reported as a liability on the government-wide financial
statements.  Liabilities of the proprietary funds are reported within those funds at the fund level
and government-wide level of financial statements.  See Note 3.F. for further disclosure of the
liabilities.

4.E.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Jointly Governed Organizations
The City paid the following jointly governed organizations for the following during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019:

Organization Purpose Amount Paid Amount Owed as 
of June 30th 

Shoshone Municipal Pipeline Wholesale water $1,607,283 $155,125 
Wyoming Municipal Power Agency Wholesale electricity $9,126,893 $696,342 
Yellowstone Regional Airport Operating contribution $174,365 $0 

Purchases from Elected Officials 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 the City of Cody purchased materials and services 
from a business owed by a council member in the amount of $67,601.   

4.F.  COMMITMENTS
Construction Commitments
At June 30, 2019, the following construction commitments were outstanding of which some are
being performed by City of Cody employees/departments:

Project Department 
Actual as of       

June 30th 
Anticipated 

Remaining Cost 
Wastewater treatment facility phase 2 Wastewater $429,568 $5,570,431 
Beacon Hill water tank Water 226,434 3,373,565 
Sunshine Ave water line Water 27,082 10,000 
Splash park Parks 206,578 349,037 
Gunwerks service line Electric 1,479 24,522 
Country estates service line Electric 32,125 2,376 
ADA ramp installations Public Works 166,002 242,843 

Total $1,089,268 $9,572,774 

4.G.  SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
The City maintains four business-type activities which provide solid waste, water, wastewater
and electric services.  Only the Water Fund and the Electric Fund are required to have segment
information presented, however Management has chosen to show limited segment information
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on each Proprietary Fund in this Note.  Each fund is a major fund therefore the full segment 
information can be easily seen in the proprietary funds financial statements.  Segment 
information for the year ended June 30, 2019 as follows: 

4.H.  CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies
Grant Program Involvement – in the normal course of operations the City participated in various
federal and state grant/loan programs from year to year.  The grant/loan programs are often
subject to additional audits by the granting or loan agency, the purpose of which is to ensure
compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan.  Any liability for reimbursement
which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined at this time, although
it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Litigation – the City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course 
of government operations.  The financial statements do not include accrual or provisions for loss 
contingencies that may result from these proceedings.  While the outcome of the above noted 
proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the 
State Statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or insurance would not have 
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

4.I.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS/OTHER
The following actions were taken by the City Council subsequent to the June 30th end of the
fiscal year but prior to the issue date of this report:

Approved a request to increase funding for the TAP Grant to $400,000 (increased from $320,000 
previously approved) and the City of Cody local match amount to $100,000 (increased from 
$80,000 previously approved).   

Solid Waste Fund Water Fund Wastewater Fund Electric Fund Combined Total
Total Assets $4,589,279 $14,846,260 $17,036,239 $17,425,628 $53,897,406 
Current Assets 3,154,241                 4,992,187                3,063,981 6,797,119 18,007,528 
Capital Assets 1,435,038                 9,854,073              13,972,258 10,628,509 35,889,878 
Current Liabilities 134,321 234,762 113,962 994,250 1,477,295 
Net Position Capital Assets 1,435,038                 9,854,073              13,972,258 10,628,509 35,889,878 
Net Position Unrestricted 2,588,939                 4,378,096 860,293 5,167,908 12,995,236 
Operating Revenues 2,201,322                 3,255,154                1,355,211 12,086,177 18,897,864 
Operating Expense 2,163,920                 3,107,276                1,293,569 11,186,146 17,750,911 
Operating Income (Loss) 37,402 147,878 61,642 900,031 1,146,953 
Interest Income 35,937 49,638 30,526 56,127 172,228 
Transfers Out 183,221 175,586 91,366 660,381 1,110,554 
Change in Net Position (100,318) 322,132 128,226 295,777 645,808 
Net Position Beginning 4,124,295               13,910,037              14,814,736 15,500,640 48,349,717 
Net Position Ending 4,023,977               14,232,169              14,942,962 15,796,417 48,995,525 
Net Cash Flow Operations 119,948 640,880 670,520 1,262,171 2,693,519 
Net Cash Flow Non-Capital (178,844) (175,584) (91,361) (660,382) (1,106,171)
Net Cash Flow Capital (16,722) (105,542)                 (133,152) (249,271) (504,687)
Net Cash Flow Investing 35,937 49,638 30,527 56,127 172,229 
Beginning Cash 2,887,077                 4,067,584                2,395,503 4,315,569 13,665,733 
Ending Cash $2,847,396 $4,476,976 $2,872,037 $4,724,214 $14,920,623 
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Awarded Bid 2019-02 for the Wastewater Treatment Facility Phase 2 Treatment Facility to 
Harris Trucking & Construction Company in the amount of $5,221,162. 

Approved the non-recourse promissory note, mortgage and assignment and pledge of revenues 
between the City of Cody and Wyoming Business Council for the Gunwerks manufacturing 
facility loan in the amount of $3,000,000. 

Awarded Bid 2019-06 to Denny Menholt in the amount of $32,998 for a 2020 ½ Ton Police 
Crew Cab 4x4 Pickup. 

Awarded Bid 2019-07 to Fremont Motors for a total amount of $68,190 for two (2) 2020 AWD 
Police Utility Vehicles. 

Awarded Bid 2019-08 to Bobcat of the Big Horn Basin, Inc in the amount of $51,390.65 for a 
Bobcat S650 T4 Skid Steer Loader with attachments. 

Authorized the Mayor to enter into and sign a contract between the City of Cody and Leisure In 
Montana, Inc as it relates to the replacement and installation of the sand filtration systems to the 
Therapy and Leisure Pools at the Paul Stock Aquatic and Recreation Center for an amount not to 
exceed $54,791, plus a contingency of 10% ($5,479). 

Authorized the Mayor to sign a letter to Wyoming Business Council withdrawing the grant for the 
Wyoming Authentic Products grant in the amount of $748,360. 

Approved the uncollectible account write offs in the amount of $63,247.38. 

Approved Resolution 2019-10 amending the City of Cody final budget for FY2019-2020. 

Awarded Quote 2019-10, Grading “W”, to Harris Trucking & Construction Co. for 10,000 tons 
of Grading “W” road base in the amount of $49,500. 

Authorized the Mayor to sign the loan agreement between the Wyoming Business Council and 
the City of Cody for the Gunwerks project in the amount of $3,000,000. 
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General Fund - Modifed Accrual Basis
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

 Original 
Budget 

 Final       
Budget  Actual 

 Variance 
Positive(Negative) 

REVENUES
Taxes 3,367,890          3,367,890          3,294,501      (73,389) 
Invergovernmental 3,627,123          3,002,657          2,982,768      (19,889) 
Licenses & Permits - - 79,428           79,428 
Fines & Assessments 109,100             109,100             83,799           (25,301) 
Charges for Services 1,883,802          1,888,802          1,578,691      (310,111) 
Operating Grants & Contributions 279,741             274,939             306,392         31,453 
Investment Income - - 102,300         102,300 
Miscellaneous - - 203,699         203,699 

Total Revenues 9,267,656          8,643,388          8,631,578      (11,810) 

EXPENDITURES
General Government 1,570,435          825,004             756,979         68,025 
Police 3,146,666          3,279,427          3,066,124      213,303 
Parks & City Facilities 1,160,685          1,186,110          1,079,622      106,488 
Community Development & Public Works 1,886,170          1,916,083          1,621,105      294,978 
Recreation Center 2,325,221          2,324,318          2,150,089      174,229 

Total Expenditures 10,089,177        9,530,942          8,673,919      857,023 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transfers In 956,874             956,874             947,148         9,726 
Transfers Out (313,275)            (313,275)            (313,274)        (1) 

Net Transfers 643,599             643,599             633,874         9,725 

Net change in fund balance (177,922)            (243,955)            591,533         835,488 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 8,396,553          8,396,553          8,396,553      - 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 8,218,631$        8,152,598$        8,988,086$    835,488$  

Adjustments to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Basis:
Changes in due from other governments 23,834$         
Changes in due from other entities 9,029             
Changes in court receivables and related accounts (7,736)            
Changes in other receivables 2,362             
Changes in allowances 20,451           
Changes in inventory (65,856)          
Changes in accrued liabilities (22,886)          
Changes in deferred revenue 22,555           
Net change in fund balances - GAAP basis (18,247)          

Ending Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 8,969,839$    

Notes:
(1)

(2)

(3)

The City of Cody operates a Vehicle Maintenance department in the General Fund.  The main function of this 
department is to provide maintenance and repair services on fleet vehicles and equipment.  Under City policies, 
interdepartmental services performed by one department for another are credited to the performing department and 
charged to the receiving department to reflect the accurate cost of programs.  For reporting purposes, the Enterprise 
Fund charges are shown as transfers in/out between funds.  The General Fund activities are credited to the 
performing department and charged as an expense to the receiving departments.  The cost allocation is calculated 
annually based on each department’s percentage of use; therefore, actual costs are not being allocated.  See Note 
1.E. in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for additional details.

The City of Cody operates a Vehicle Replacement capital project fund which accounts for transfers from other funds 
within the primary government which is to be used to purchase vehicles and equipment. Transfers are based upon 
each department’s vehicles and assigned replacement schedules to allocate appropriate funds to cover future 
replacements.  See Note 3.G. in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for additional details.

The budget for the General Fund is preapred using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.
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 Original 
Budget 

 Final 
Budget 

 Actual 
Amounts 

 Variance 
Positive(Negative) 

REVENUES
Taxes 127,000$   127,000$  125,560$   (1,440)$   
Investment Income - -  679  679  

 Total Revenues 127,000  127,000 126,239  (761)  

EXPENDITURES
General Government 112,841  113,053 94,874  18,179  
Outside Agency Funding 20,000  20,000 20,000  -  

 Total Expenditures 132,841  133,053 114,874  18,179  

Net change in fund balance (5,841)$  (6,053)$   11,365$   17,418$   

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 24,609$   24,609$  24,609$   -$   

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 18,768$   18,556$  35,974$   17,418$   

LODGING TAX FUND

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.
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 Original 
Budget 

 Final                    
Budget 

 Actual 
Amounts 

 Variance 
Positive(Negative) 

REVENUES
Taxes 2,043,463$        2,043,463$        2,238,401$        194,938$                
Investment Income -                     -                     42,137               42,137                    

     Total Revenues 2,043,463          2,043,463          2,280,538          237,075                  

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 522,576             768,571             976,062             (207,491)                

     Total Expenditures 522,576             768,571             976,062             (207,491)                

Net change in fund balance 1,520,887$        1,274,892$        1,304,476$        29,584$                  

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,805,366$        2,805,366$        2,805,366$        -$                        

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 4,326,253$        4,080,258$        4,109,842$        29,584$                  

SPECIFIC PURPOSE TAX FUND

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Capital Projects Fund Special Revenue Fund
 Vehicle Replacement 

Fund  Cody Public Art Fund 
Total Non-Major 

Governmental Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 160,059$  4,879$  164,938$  
Investments 2,671,714 - 2,671,714$  
Accounts Receivable 2,161 - 

     Total Assets 2,833,934$  4,879$  2,836,652$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable -$  1,470$  1,470$  

     Total Liabilities -$  1,470$  1,470$  

FUND EQUITY
Fund Balance:
      Nonspendable: -$  -$  -$  
      Restricted:
          Public Art - 3,409 3,409$  
      Committed: - - -$  
     Assigned: - - -$  
         Capital Assets 2,833,934 - 2,833,934$  
     Unassigned - - -$  

     Total Fund Equity 2,833,934$  3,409$  2,837,343$  

     Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 2,833,934$  4,879$  2,838,813$  

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Non-Major Governmental Funds
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019

Capital Projects Fund Special Revenue Fund
 Vehicle Replacement 

Fund  Cody Public Art Fund 
Total Non-Major 

Governmental Funds
REVENUES

Contributions - 7,030 7,030 
Investment Income 42,593$  -$  42,593$  

         Total Revenues 42,593 7,030 49,623 

EXPENDITURES
Public Art Displays - 3,621 3,621 
Miscellaneous 38 - 38 
Capital Outlay 367,689 - 367,689 

         Total Expenditures 367,727 3,621 371,348 

Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures (325,134) 3,409 (321,725) 

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
     Transfers In 476,680 - 476,680 

 Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 151,546 3,409 154,955 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,682,388 - 2,682,388 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 2,833,934$  3,409$  2,837,343$  

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.
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City of Cody, Wyoming
Schedule of Pensions

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Public Employee Pension Plan

City's proportion of the net pension liability (Asset) 0.2481617% 0.2371331% 0.2390953% 0.2378250% 0.2320843%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 7,557,246$     5,405,071$     5,780,129$     5,539,771$     4,095,574$     
City's covered-employee payroll 4,420,111$     4,212,379$     4,262,843$     4,169,999$     3,967,278$     
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of covered employees 170.97% 128.31% 135.59% 133.56% 103.23%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 69.17% 76.35% 73.42% 73.40% 79.08%

Law Enforcement Pension Plan
City's proportion of the net pension liability (Asset) 0.0849051% 0.8264306% 0.7681368% 0.8147468% 0.8126946%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,055,317$     711,097$        579,881$        612,037$        239,450$        
City's covered-employee payroll 1,344,341$     1,268,960$     1,188,916$     1,225,377$     1,201,088$     
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of covered employees 152.89% 56.04% 48.77% 49.95% 19.94%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 71.22% 87.99% 88.11% 87.49% 94.76%

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Public Employee Pension Plan

Contractually required contributions 753,360$        707,840$        710,756$        689,754$        615,196$        
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions 753,360$        707,840$        710,756$        689,754$        615,196$        
Contribuiton deficiency(excess) -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
City's covered employee payroll 4,420,111$     4,258,964$     4,276,510$     4,150,144$     3,876,471$     
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 17.04% 16.62% 16.62% 16.62% 15.87%

Law Enforcement Pension Plan
Contractually required contributions 231,227$        225,664$        206,736$        220,283$        216,359$        
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions 231,227$        225,664$        206,736$        220,283$        216,359$        
Contribuiton deficiency(excess) -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
City's covered employee payroll 1,344,341$     1,312,002$     1,201,953$     1,280,715$     1,257,901$     
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 17.20% 17.20% 17.20% 17.20% 17.20%

* Information for years prior to 2015 is not available
** The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year end that occurred within the fiscal year

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 fiscal years* (unaudited)

Schedule of Pension Contributions - Last 10 fiscal years* (unaudited)

See independent auditor's report as it relates to required supplementary information.

63



This page intentionally left blank



64



65









AGENDA ITEM NO. _______
City of Cody City Council Page 1 of 1
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY REPORT
America Walks 2019 Community Change Grant

ACTION TO BE TAKEN
Authorize the City Administrator, or his designee, to complete and submit a $1,500 grant application with 
America Walks.

SUMMARY OF INFORMATION
America Walks has seen firsthand that the passion, innovation and hard work of advocates and local 
organizations to advance safe, equitable, accessible, and enjoyable places to walk and move are what create 
the foundation for walkable communities across the US. This grant program will work to provide support to 
the growing network of advocates, organizations, and agencies using innovative, engaging, and inclusive 
programs and projects to create change at the community level.
 
Funded projects should:

 Increase physical activity and active transportation in a specific community
 Work to engage people and organizations new to the efforts of walking and walkability
 Demonstrate a culture of inclusive health
 Create and support healthy, active, and engaged communities
 This will be a no cost program to participants

FISCAL IMPACT
$1,500 if a grant is awarded to the City. The grant and programs will not exceed $1,500. There will be a 
walking program taught by the Fitness Coordinator. We will also be working on Beck Lake Trail distance 
markers. Either make post improvements or white paint depending on project budget.

ALTERNATIVES
Do not submit a grant application.

ATTACHMENTS
Application Community Change Grants 2019

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019
DEPARTMENT:  PARKS AND REC
PREPARED BY:  RICK MANCHESTER, DIRECTOR
PRESENTED BY: RICK MANCHESTER 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY REPORT 
AUTHORIZE THE RELINQUISHMENT AND DEDICATION OF EASEMENTS FOR AN EXISTING 

WATER LINE AT 2229 BIG HORN AVENUE 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN 
Authorize the relinquishment and dedication of easements for an existing water line at 2229 Big Horn 
Avenue. 
 
SUMMARY 
The property at 2229 Big Horn Avenue is owned by 
DALCAM, LLC, and contains the HBI Insurance 
building.  The property owner submitted a site plan 
application to construct an addition onto the front 
(south side) of the existing.  Through the review 
process it was discovered that a domestic water line 
easement was in the way of the proposed addition.  
However, it was also discovered that the physical 
water line was further to the south, which location 
does not conflict with the proposed addition.  The 
attached document would move the water line 
easement to be correctly located over the existing 
water line—and out of the way of the proposed 
addition.  The water line was part of a private water system that the City acquired in 1964. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The costs of the associated survey and recording fee is covered jointly by the property owner and the 
City water fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Dedication and Vacation of Water Line Easement and Right-of-Way document, with exhibit. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
Approve or deny the request. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the mayor to execute the Dedication and Vacation of Water Line Easement and Right-of-way 
document. 
 
AGENDA & SUMMARY REPORT TO: 
Denny Baustert, DALCAM, LLC 

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
PREPARED BY: TODD STOWELL, AICP 
CITY ADM. APPROVAL: ________ 
PRESENTED BY: TODD STOWELL 



DEDICATION AND VACATION OF     
WATER LINE EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
 
Whereas, the physical location of the City of Cody domestic water main and associated 
right-of-way transferred and conveyed to the City of Cody by the East Cody Water 
Association pursuant to that document recorded in Book 317, Page 150, records of Park 
County, Wyoming, across that certain property described as Parcel A in Exhibit “A”, 
located at 2229 Big Horn Avenue, Cody, WY, does not correspond to the legal 
description provided in that document; and 
 
Whereas, the property owner “DALCAM, LLC” and the City of Cody both desire to align 
the described location of the easement to the correct physical location of the water line; 
 
The parties agree as follows. 
 
Relinquishment of Water Line Right-of-Way: 
 
Now therefore, the City of Cody, in consideration of DALCAM, LLC, a Wyoming limited 
liability company,  granting  a new water line easement and right-of-way as set forth 
herein, does hereby relinquish and abandon that section of the water line right-of-way 
transferred and conveyed to the City of Cody by that certain document recorded in Book 
317, Page 150 records of Park County, WY, where it crosses the DALCAM, LLC property 
at 2229 Big Horn Avenue, described as Parcel A in Exhibit “A”; 
 
Dedication of New Water Line Easement and Right-of-Way: 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That DALCAM, LLC, which is the owner of 
that certain property located at 2229 Big Horn Avenue, Cody, Wyoming 82414, 
described as Parcel A in Exhibit “A”, hereinafter called GRANTOR, for and in 
consideration of the sum of Ten ($10.00) Dollars and other valuable consideration, 
the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, convey, and 
warrant unto the City of Cody, Wyoming, a municipal corporation, whose address is 
P.O. Box 2200, Cody, Wyoming 82414 hereinafter called GRANTEE, its successors, 
transferees, and assigns, a WATER LINE EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY along 
a route described below. By this easement and right of way, Grantor grants to 
Grantee the right to lay, erect, construct Install, operate, maintain, inspect, alter, 
repair, replace, change the size of, and remove water main pipelines and 
appurtenances thereto, under, across, and through a strip of land situated in the City 
of Cody, Park County, Wyoming, said strip of land which is more particularly 
described on the attached Exhibit “A” “Legal Description”, under the heading 
“PROPOSED LEGAL DESCRIPTION”  and graphically illustrated on Exhibit “A”, 
which Exhibit “A” by this reference is made a part hereof.  The easement shall be 



twenty (20) feet wide, with ten (10) feet on either side of the centerline described on 
the attached Exhibit “A”. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto said GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, together 
with the right of ingress to  and egress from said land for  the purpose of laying, 
erecting, constructing, installing, operating, maintaining, inspecting, altering, 
repairing, replacing, changing the  size of, and removing water main facilities, 
pipelines and appurtenances thereto, of the GRANTEE, in whole or in part, at the will 
of the GRANTEE; it being the intention of the parties hereto that the GRANTOR may 
continue to use the surface of the easement strip conveyed hereby provided, 
however, that such use shall not interfere with GRANTEE'S exercise of the rights 
hereby conveyed. 
 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD as follows: 
 

1. GRANTEE, its successors, transferees, and assigns, shall have the right to 
assign and convey this grant and any of the rights provided for herein in whole 
or in part and the same shall be divisible among two or more owners as to any 
right or rights created here under. 

2. This right-of-way and easement does not convey any interest whatever in 
any oil, gas, or other minerals in, on or under the above described land. 

3. This instrument contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are 
no other or different agreements or understandings between the GRANTOR 
and the GRANTEE or its agents, and that the GRANTOR, in executing and 
delivering this instrument, has not relied upon any promises, inducements, or 
representations of the GRANTEE or its agents and employees, except as such 
as are set forth herein. 

4. The word GRANTOR as used herein shall mean the party or parties who 
execute this instrument as GRANTOR, whether or not named in the caption 
or introductory paragraph hereof, and they shall be bound individually and in 
solido. Wherever necessary, words used in the singular shall be construed 
to read in the plural and words used in the masculine gender shall be 
construed to read in the feminine gender. 

5. GRANTOR herein agrees not to reduce or increase the grade within the 
easement area by more than six (6) inches or knowingly permit any party other 
than GRANTEE to reduce or increase such grade. Before GRANTOR allows 
any party other than  
GRANTEE to excavate or dig in any manner in the vicinity of the easement, 
GRANTOR shall inform the other party of the existence of the easement and 



the requirement for providing access to the pipeline within the right-of way. 
6. GRANTEE is solely responsible for constructing, maintaining, repairing, 

replacing, and operating the water main facilities and appurtenances in the 
above easement. 

7. This instrument and the covenants and agreements herein contained shall 
inure to the benefit of and be binding and obligatory upon the heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, 
and shall run with the land in perpetuity. 
 

DATED this   day of    2019. 
 
 
GRANTEE:  CITY OF CODY, WYOMING: 
 
By:      , Mayor, City of Cody 
 
 
Attest:      , City Clerk 
 
 
GRANTOR:  DALCAM, LLC 
 
 
By:     ,  
Dennis C. Baustert, Member / Manager 
 
 
By:__________________________ 
Antoinette T. Baustert, Member / Manager 
 
Signature:      
 
By:     , Property Owner 
 
Signature:      
 
STATE OF WYOMING )  

COUNTY OF PARK           )   SS. 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Dennis C. Baustert and Antoinette 

T. Baustert as Members / Managers of DALCAM, LLC. 

this   day of    , 2019.  Witness my hand and official seal. 

Notary Public:      
 
My Commission Expires:      





LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

PROPOSED EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 
 
AN EASEMENT FOR A DOMESTIC WATER LINE, SAID EASEMENT BEING A STRIP OF LAND 20 FEET IN 
WIDTH, 10 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED CENTERLINE: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PARCEL A; THENCE NORTH 
00°43’09” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF 168.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 
HEREIN DESCRIBED CENTERINE; THENCE SOUTH 89°01’50” WEST 82.00 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF 
HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PARCEL A AND THE TERMINUS OF SAID DESCRIBED CENTERLINE. 
 
THE SIDELINES OF SAID EASEMENT BEING LENGTHENED AND/OR SHORTENED TO BEGIN/TERMINATE ON 
THE EAST AND WEST LINES OF HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PARCEL A. 
 

PARCEL A DESCRIPTION 
 
PER WARRANTY DEED FILED NOVEMBER 29, 2016 UNDER AUDITOR’S FILE NUMBER 2006-9338, 
RECORDS OF PARK COUNTY, WYOMING. 
 
TOWNSHIP 53 NORTH, RANGE 101 WEST, 6TH P.M., PARK COUNTY, WYOMING, ACCORDING TO THE 
RECORDS OF THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER OF PARK COUNTY, STATE OF WYOMING. 
 
SECTION 28: SOUTH 383.33 FEET OF EAST 82 FEET OF E1/2, W1/2, W1/2, W1/2, SE1/4, SW1/4. 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Bid 2019-11 (1) New Current Model Self Propelled Street Sweeper 
 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 
 

Approve the award of Bid 2019-11 to Titan Machinery for one Elgin Whirlwind Sweeper in the amount 
of $302,181.00 less a trade in amount of $16,500.00, for a net total of $285,681.00. 

 
SUMMARY OF INFORMATION: 

 

A request was made in FY 2019/2020 for the purchase of a new street sweeper within the Streets 
Division. This will be replacing a 1995 Chassis and 2011 sweeper body currently being used within 
the Streets Division. 

 
A 1995 Ford Chassis with Tymco sweeper body was offered in trade. 

 
Bid packets were sent to Titan Machinery, CMI-TECO, Ameritech Equipment Company, Kois 
Brothers Equipment and Nescon, LLC. 

 
Two bidders submitted two bids.  These bids were opened at City Hall on 10/24/19. 

 
Kois Brothers Equipment submitted one bid for (1) Global V6 sweeper in the amount of $283,520.00, 
less a trade in value of $18,000.00, leaving a net total bid of $265,520.00. The bid submitted was 
evaluated and determined to not meet the required Minimum Specifications. 

 
Titan Machinery submitted one bid for (1) Elgin Whirlwind Sweeper in the amount of $302,181.00, 
less a trade in value of $16,500.00, leaving a net total bid of $285,681.00. The bid submitted was 
evaluated and determined to meet the required Minimum Specifications. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 

Funding, in the amount of $300,000.00, was budgeted for and approved in the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 
budget. 

 
ALTERNATIVES 

 

Approve or deny the award of Bid 2019-11 to Titan Machinery for one Elgin Whirlwind Sweeper in the 
amount of $302,181.00 less a trade in amount of $16,500.00, for a net total of $285,681.00. 

MEETING DATE: 11/5/19 

DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 

PREPARED BY: ROB KRAMER 

PRESENTED BY:  PHILLIP M. BOWMAN, P.E. 
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ATTACHMENTS 
 

1.  Bid packet 2019-11 
 
AGENDA & SUMMARY REPORT TO: 

 

1. Tyson Williams, Titan Machinery, tyson.williams@titanmachinery.com 
2. Ernest Kois, Kois Brothers Equipment, ekois@koisbrothers.com 
3. Roy Pilcher, Kois Brothers Equipment, rpilcher@koisbrothers.com 

mailto:tyson.williams@titanmachinery.com
mailto:ekois@koisbrothers.com
mailto:rpilcher@koisbrothers.com
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For more information:  City of Cody    307-527-7511 
****************************************************************************** 

Bid No. 2019-11 
(1) New Current Model or Demo Self Propelled Street Sweeper 

 
The City of Cody will receive sealed bids until 2:00 p.m., 10/24/19 at Cody City Hall, 
1338 Rumsey Avenue, P.O. Box 2200, Cody, Wyoming 82414, for (1) New Current 
Model or Demo Street Sweeper with an option to trade in (1) 1995 Ford Truck with 
2011 Tymco 600 Sweeper Body.  All bids will be opened and read aloud at this time.  
Full bid details and specifications are included in the bid packet available at City Hall or 
by emailing kylieh@cityofcody.com.  Direct any questions to Rob Kramer at 587-2958.   
 
The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids and further reserves the right to 
waive any informalities if deemed in the best interest of the City. No bid may be 
considered unless accompanied by the required bid guarantee of 5% of the total bid 
amount. 
 
Dated this 3rd day of October, 2019. 
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia Baker 
      Administrative Services Officer 
 
PUBLISH:  October 10th, 2019 
  October 17th, 2019 

 
 
 

mailto:kylieh@cityofcody.com
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INSTRUCTIONS: (1) New Current Model or Demo Self Propelled Street Sweeper  
 BID REQUEST NUMBER 2019-11 

 
 
The Bidder agrees to provide (1) New Current Model or Demo Self Propelled Street Sweeper free and 
clear of all liens of any kind, pursuant to the specifications and invitation to bid.  The bid may include a 
trade-in value for (1) 1995 Ford Truck with 2011 Tymco 600 Sweeper Body 
VIN1FDXH70C5SVA67737. The bidder shall complete every space in the Bid 2019-11 City of Cody 
Specifications Form on page 4-7 to indicate that the item being bid is exactly as specified.  All (no) 
responses shall be explained in detail on an attached sheet.  Bids will be accepted for consideration on any 
make or model that is equal or superior to the specifications. 
 
The bidder warrants that he has read and understands the requirements of the City of Cody, that he encloses 
a bid bond in the amount of not less than five percent (5%) of the “TOTAL BID” amount, and that the bid 
price represents all costs to the City of Cody including delivery, setup, dealer preparation, and all other 
costs of providing the unit in accordance with the specifications therefore.  All bid guarantees must be 
received in the form of a bid bond, cashier’s check or money order.  No personal or business checks will be 
accepted as a bid guarantee.  If a bid is received without the necessary 5% bid guarantee it will be rejected.  
The undersigned further understands that the Governing Body of the City of Cody shall determine in its 
sole discretion the most responsible bidder, and may reject any and all bids or make substitution, waive 
defects it deems unsubstantial in any bid, and that if an award is made, they will award the bid in the best 
interest of the City.  Award of bid is subject to budget appropriation for this purchase. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Sections 16-6-101, 16-6-102 and 16-6-106 Volume 3, Title 9 of the 
Wyoming Complied Statutes, 1977, preference is hereby given to resident Wyoming Contractors and to 
materials, supplies, equipment, machinery and provisions produced, manufactured, supplied or grown in 
Wyoming, quality being equal to articles offered by competitors outside the state.  Bidders claiming 
preference must submit evidence of WY residency as defined in WY Statute Section 16-6-101. 
 
The offer made herein shall be binding for 30 days after the date of bid opening. 
 
Award of bid shall be made by Notice of Award, which shall be accompanied by a binding agreement to 
supply the unit pursuant to the bid documents.  Bidder warrants that Bidder has read the proposed 
agreement and agrees to the terms and conditions contained therein.  The unit shall be delivered and tested 
within the time frame specified by the Bidder upon receipt of order. 
 
Payment shall be made within 30 days after the delivery and acceptance of the unit. 
 
All material provided under this bid shall be new and unused.  Bid documents may be obtained from: 
     

City of Cody 
   P.O. Box 2200  

1338 Rumsey Avenue 
Cody, Wyoming 82414 
(307) 527-7511 

 
Bids are to be sealed and addressed to the City of Cody, 1338 Rumsey Avenue, P.O. Box 2200, Cody,  
Wyoming 82414 and shall be marked "Bid No. 2019-11, (1) New Current Model or Demo Self 
Propelled Street Sweeper” on the outside of the envelope. 
 
The sealed bids must be returned to the City of Cody no later than 2:00 p.m. 10/24/19.  The bid opening 
will be held at that time at City Hall.  The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids and further 
reserves the right to waive any informalities if deemed in the best interest of the City. 
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Bid Proposal Form 
Bid No. 2019-11 (1) New Current Model Self Propelled Street Sweeper 

City of Cody, Wyoming 
 

Governing Body 
City of Cody 
PO Box 2200 
1338 Rumsey Avenue 
Cody, WY  82414 
 
The undersigned Bidder agrees to provide (1) New Current Model or Demo Self Propelled Street Sweeper, free 
and clear of all liens of any kind, pursuant to the specifications and invitation to bid.  The bid may include a trade-in 
value for (1) 1995 Ford Truck with 2011 Tymco 600 Sweeper Body VIN1FDXH70C5SVA67737.  
The bid price shall be F.O.B. City of Cody Vehicle Maintenance Shop 119 19th Street, Cody, WY 82414. 
                               
Bid Schedule  Quantity  Unit   Total Price 
  
Bid for:        $    
 
Less trade if any:       $(   ) 
 
Net Total Bid       $    
 
The undersigned warrants that he/she has read and understands the requirements of the City of Cody, that he/she 
encloses a bid bond in the amount of not less than five percent (5%) of the “TOTAL BID” amount, and that the bid 
price represents all costs to the City of Cody including delivery, setup, installation and testing of providing the unit 
in accordance with the specifications therefore.  All bid guarantees must be received in the form of a bid bond, 
cashier’s check or money order.  No personal or business checks will be accepted as a bid guarantee.  If a bid is 
received without the necessary 5% bid guarantee it will be rejected. The undersigned further understands that the 
Governing Body of the City of Cody shall determine in its sole discretion the most responsible bidder, and the 
Governing Body may reject any and all bids or make substitutions, waive defects deemed unsubstantial in any bid, 
and that if an award is made, the Governing Body will award the bid in the best interest of the City.  Award of bid is 
subject to budget appropriation for this purchase. 
 
The offer made herein shall be binding for 30 days after the date of bid opening. 
 
Award of bid shall be made by Notice of Award, which shall be accompanied by a binding agreement to supply the 
unit pursuant to the bid documents.  Bidder warrants that Bidder has read the proposed agreement and agrees to the 
terms and conditions contained therein.  The unit shall be delivered and tested within the time frame specified by the 
Bidder upon receipt of order. 
 
Payment shall be made within 30 days after the delivery and acceptance of the unit. 
 
Date ____________________  __________________________________________ 
     Signature 

     __________________________________________ 
     Typed or Printed Name 

     __________________________________________ 
     Company 

     __________________________________________ 
     Mailing Address 

     _________________________________________ 
City, State and Zip 

_________________________________________ 
E-mail Address 
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City of Cody 
Bid # 2019-11 

Minimum specifications for (1) New Current Model or Demo Self Propelled 
Street Sweeper  

 
THE BIDDER SHALL COMPLETE EVERY SPACE BY PLACING A CHECK MARK UNDER THE 
YES OR NO COLUMN TO INDICATE THAT THE ITEM BEING BID IS EXACTLY AS 
SPECIFIED. ALL NO RESPONSES SHALL BE EXPLAINED IN DETAIL ON AN ATTACHED 
SHEET. 

A. GENERAL             YES     NO 
 
1. The sweeping path with the vacuum nozzles and two side brooms shall have a                                   

width of 144” or more.            
     

2.  Right hand drive only; factory supplied, no aftermarket.        
 
3. Chassis power to be used to boost system performance by providing power 

to the auxiliary engine.                                                                                      ______  ______ 
 

4. Engine: Diesel Powered, Cummins, In-Line 6, with min. of 240 Horsepower.       
 

5. Allison 3500RDS 6-Speed Automatic Transmission         
 
6. Front Axle 12,000lbs, Rear Axle Single Speed 21,000lbs HTS, with  

21,000 variable rate leaf spring.           
 

B. CAB 
 

1. LED Clearance lights.            
 

2. (2) LED front flood lights.            
 

3. (2) LED rear flood lights and backup lights.          
 

4. (2) LED strobes with guard.            
 

5. LED Front ID lights.            
 

6. Rear LED arrow stick.            
 

7. LED stop, tail and turn lights.           
 

8. Beacon light with guard.            
 

9. Water fill hose.             
 

10. Carbide dirt shoes.             
 

11. Radio install package.            
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        C. CAB cont.         YES    NO 
 

12. AM/FM radio.             
 

13. Left and right mirrors.            
 

14. Right hand air ride seat.                         
 

15. Heat and air conditioning.            
 

16. Rear and left side camera.             
  

C. SWEEPER ENGINE 
 
7. The sweeper unit shall be self-propelled and the engine shall be a  

John Deere 4045T 4.5L 4 Cylinder Turbo Diesel. Maximum 74 hp.                      
 
8. The engine shall have an auto shutdown for low oil/high temperature.     

      
9. The engine shall have an electronic throttle.          
 
10. The engine shall have a heavy-duty dual safety element air cleaner.       
 
11. Block heater.                                                                                                    
 
12. Battery disconnect switch.            
 
13. Coolant filter.             
 

D. INSTRUMENTATION/CONTROLS 
 
1. Center console with rocker switches and gauges.         
 
2. Gauges shall include, but not be limited to, tachometer, hour meter,  

oil pressure, fuel, voltmeter, coolant temp and a spray water gauge.      
        

3. A full load indicator.            
 
4. Hopper and hopper door controls.           
 
5. Memory sweep (sweep resume feature).          
 
6. LED arrow board to be mounted on the rear, or top rear, with in cab control.      

 
 

E. ELECTRICAL SYSTEM         
 

1. 12-volt system.             
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F. SWEEPER SYSTEM COMPONENTS        YES     NO 
 

1. Blower 
a) Fluid coupler and 5 groove banded power belt with adjustable idler 
       pulley.                                         

 
b) Hardox brand steel 10-gauge, rubber lined.                                                 _______  _____ 

 
c) Dual vacuum nozzles.                                           

 
2. Side Broom 

a) 36” diameter minimum, Dual right and left.    ______  ______                              
 

b) Hydraulic motor drive protected by relief valve.         
 

c) Free floating trailing arm mount.          
 

d) Inward/outward raised/lowered.            
 

e) In cab control for digging and wear.          
 

f) Right- and left-hand side broom tilt with indicator.        
 

g) The sweep position to be fully extended and in front of vacuum.        
       

h) Brooms shall be disposable segment type.         
 

i) Auto shutters.                                                                                               _______  _____ 
 

3. Debris Hopper 
a) A volumetric capacity of 8.0 cubic yards.         

 
b) Dump angle minimum 50 degrees.                        

 
c) Hopper door to have hydraulic open/close, lock/unlock.        

 
d) Hopper dump control from inside cab.                    

    
e) Hopper with a life liner.                                                               

 
4. Hydraulic System 

a) The hydraulic system shall run the motors for the gutter brooms and                                
activate the hopper dump cycles 8.3 GPM.        
      

b) Hydraulic reservoir capacity of 23 gallon minimum.       
   

c) System shall have a 10-micron spin on filter.         
 

5. Spray Water System 
a) Tank shall be of polyethylene construction and have a minimum capacity                              

of 335 gallons.             
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G. SWEEPER SYSTEM COMPONENTS  cont.      YES     NO 
 

b) Pump shall be a diaphragm type with run dry capability with high or low                            
selectable pump speeds.           
   

c) 8 GPM flow and 40 psi.                                                                          
  

d) Switches on control console will control the nozzles.       
   

e) 100 mesh cleanable filter in the system, minimum.        
 

f) 8-inch wandering hose.            
 

g) Life liner hopper system.           
    
 

H. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Dealer order form showing all equipment being bid.         
 
2. Warranty; list all available warranty.           

 
3. Two sets of operator’s manuals, one set parts manuals and one set of                                  

maintenance manuals.            
 

4. Approximate completion date.         
 
5. (3) sets of keys.             

 
6. Does the bidder hold a current Wyoming Residency Certificate?       

 
   
This sweeper unit shall be to the manufacturer’s standard.  It shall be equipped with the 
manufacturer’s equipment and accessories which are included as standard in the advertised and 
published literature for said unit.  No such item of the equipment or accessories shall be removed or 
omitted for the reason that it was not specified in the bid. 
 
OPTIONAL TRADE-IN 
 
The City of Cody may choose, at its sole discretion, to trade in a 1995 Ford Truck with 2011 Tymco 
600 Sweeper Body VIN1FDXH70C5SVA67737.  Trade in shall be in “AS IS” condition at the time of 
the bid opening.  This equipment will be available for inspection at the City of Cody Vehicle Maintenance 
Shop located at 119 19th Street, Cody, WY 82414, by appointment, between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 
3:00 P.M., Monday through Friday.  Bidder shall state the amount of allowance to be deducted from the 
Bidder’s proposal on the attached Bid Proposal Form should the City of Cody select this option. 
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